
 

 
 

MEETING 
 

CONSTITUTION AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

THURSDAY 6TH JANUARY, 2022 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF CONSTITUTION AND GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE 
(Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Melvin Cohen LLB (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Laithe Jajeh (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Cllr Richard Cornelius 
Cllr Helene Richman 

Cllr Barry Rawlings 
Cllr Geof Cooke 
 

Cllr Alison Moore 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Cllr Peter Zinkin 
Cllr Sachin Rajput 
 

Cllr Anthony Finn 
Cllr Alan Schneiderman 
 

Cllr Anne Clarke 
Cllr Claire Farrier  
 

 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before the date of the 
committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Friday 31st December at 
10AM. Requests must be submitted to Abigail.Lewis@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 4369 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 
Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: Abigail Lewis Abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 4369 
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 
Please consider the environment before printing. The average Print Cost for this Committee has 
reduced by £76.47 per meeting, due to paperlight working. 
 
Two paper copies of the agenda only will be available at the meeting for members of the public. If 
needed, attendees are requested to print any specific agenda report(s). Committee Agendas are 
available here:  barnet.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1 
 

mailto:Abigail.Lewis@barnet.gov.uk
mailto:Abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

5 - 10 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Other interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)  
 

 

5.   Public Question and Comments (if any)  
 

 

6.   Members Item (if any)  
 

 

7.   Proposals for the restructure of the Community Safety Team within 
the Assurance Group  
 

11 - 54 

8.   Final Proposals for new Polling Districts and Polling  
 

55 - 130 

9.   Revised Boundaries and Arrangements - Residents Forums and 
Area Committees  
 

131 - 150 

10.   Member Safety Review  
 

151 - 160 

11.   Temporary Recruitment to Post of Assistant Director, Development 
and Economy  
 

To Follow 

12.   Post Creation - Assistant Director Growth & Corporate Services: 
Assistant Director: Development Delivery  
 

To Follow 

13.   Committee Forward Work Programme  
 

161 - 164 

14.   Any item(s) that he Chairman decides is urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 



 
    

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Abigail Lewis 
abigail.lewis@barnet.gov.uk 020 8359 4369.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
Decisions of the Constitution and General Purposes Committee 

 
4 October 2021 

 
Members Present:- 

 
Councillor Laithe Jajeh (Vice-Chairman in the Chair) 

 

Councillor Helene Richman 
Councillor Geof Cooke 
Councillor Peter Zinkin  
(In place of Councillor Melvin 
Cohen) 
 

Councillor Sachin Rajput  
(In place of Councillor Richard Cornelius) 
Councillor Alan Schneiderman  
(In place of Councillor Barry Rawlings) 
Councillor Claire Farrier  
(In place of Councillor Alison Moore) 
 

 
Apologies for Absence 

 
Councillor Melvin Cohen 
Councillor Richard Cornelius 
 

Councillor Barry Rawlings 
Councillor Alison Moore 
 

 
 

1.    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 22 June 2021 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 
 

2.    ABSENCE OF MEMBERS  
 
The Committee noted the following changes of membership: 

 Councillor Melvin Cohen (Chairman) was being substituted for by Councillor Zinkin 

 Councillor Richard Cornelius was being substituted for by Councillor Rajput 

 Councillor Rawlings was being substituted for by Councillor Schneiderman  

 Councillor Moore being was being substituted for by Councillor Farrier 
 
 

3.    DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
None. 
 
 

4.    REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 
 

5.    PUBLIC QUESTION AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 
 

5

AGENDA ITEM 1



 

2 

6.    MEMBERS ITEM (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 
 

7.    ELECTORAL SERVICES OVERVIEW REPORT  
 
The Chief Executive and Returning Officer, John Hooton, and the Head of Electoral 
Services, John Bailey, introduced the report which provided an update on the activities of 
Barnet’s Electoral Services Team throughout 2020 and 2021 (to date) and reports on 
Barnet’s delivery of the Mayor of London and London Assembly elections (and two local 
by-elections) on 6 May 2021. 
 
A Member questioned whether Electoral Services would do anything addition to 
circulating poll cards in the lead up to the 2022 local election to inform electors of the 
new polling places.  The Head of Electoral Services advised the Committee that 
evidence from the election which took place in May 2021 was that the poll card was very 
effective and the additional effort for bespoke communications had not been justified.  
Electoral Services would put resources into make sure that the borough-wide publicity 
about the polling place changes was as effective as possible because so many electors 
are likely to be affected. 
 
RESOLVED that the Committee note the Electoral Services Overview Report 
attached at Appendix A. 
 
 

8.    DRAFT PROPOSALS FOR NEW POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING PLACES  
 
The Chief Executive and Returning Officer, John Hooton, the Head of Electoral Services, 
John Bailey, and the Head of Assurance and Business Development, Emily Bowler, 
presented a report which set out draft proposals for new polling districts and polling 
places which would come into effect in May 2022 when the new ward boundaries come 
into effect. 
 
The Committee noted that the proposals had already been subject to initial scrutiny by a 
cross party Member Reference Group.  It was noted that the overall proposals were 
considered to have merit and any further representations from the Groups could be 
made as part of the consultation process.   
 
Officers were requested to consider road safety issues as part of their post-consultation 
review of proposed polling place venues.   
 
Responding to a question from the Committee, the Head of Electoral Services reported 
that officers were seeking to have an even distribution of polling places across wards.   
 
RESOLVED that the Committee note the Returning Officer’s proposals, as detailed 
within Appendices 1 to 26, ahead of the six-week statutory public consultation that 
will take place between mid-October and December 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 

3 

9.    IMPLEMENTING THE NEW WARDING ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE LONDON 
BOROUGH OF BARNET - PROJECT UPDATE (JUNE - SEPTEMBER 2021)  
 
The Chief Executive and Returning Officer, John Hooton, and the Head of Assurance 
and Business Development, Emily Bowler, presented a report which provided an update 
on the project to implement new ward boundaries which come in effect at the Local 
Government elections on 5 May 2022.  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee note the progress, since last reported to the 
Committee in June 2021, of the project to implement the new warding 
arrangements in Barnet including the work of the Cross-Party Reference Group 
which has enabled collaboration between Members and officers throughout the 
process. 
 
 

10.    AMENDMENTS TO THE PAY POLICY STATEMENT AND ASSOCIATED 
POLICIES  
 
The Assistant Director Human Resources and Organisational Development, Jon Bell, 
presented a report which proposed an amendment to the Council’s current Pay Policy 
Statement and the introduction of a Policy for Payments for Additional Responsibilities 
and Outstanding Contributions. 
 
The Committee sought reassurance that the Policy would be applied consistently across 
the Council’s directorates and services.  Members were advised that managers would 
need to make a recommendation to a Chief Officer and the Assistant Director Human 
Resources and Organisational Development which would ensure some consistency in 
the approach.  It was agreed that a report should be presented to a future meeting of the 
Committee on the application of the Policy.   
 
RESOLVED that the Committee:  
 
1. Approve the Policy for Additional Payments and Outstanding Contributions 

attached at Appendix A.  
 
2. Approve the proposal to abolish the limits to Reward and Recognition 

payments.  
 
3. Agree amendments to the Council’s 2021/22 Pay Policy Statement which reflect 

the changes in 1 and 2 above (as set out in Appendix B) and refer the 
Statement to Full Council for approval. 

 
4. Request that a report on the application of the Policy for Additional Payments 

and Outstanding Contributions be reported to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 

 
 

11.    CONSTITUTION REVIEW  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee: 
 
1. Note the following amendments the Constitution Review report to be presented 

to Council: 

7



 

4 

 

Section 1.2, Item 2 Add ‘A, B and C’ after Planning Committees. 
 

Section 1.2, Item 3 Delete ‘chairman or’ from the issue identified 
column. 
 
Amend the changes proposed column to delete 
‘Chairman’ and replace with ‘Monitoring Officer’ 
 

Section 1.2, Item 4 Add ‘request’ to the issue identified column. 
 
Add ‘request to’ to the changes proposed column. 
 

Section 1.2, Item 8 Delete ‘agreed’ with ‘indicated’ in the issue 
identified column. 
 
Delete ‘theme’ in the issue identified column. 
 

Section 1.2, Items 15 and 
16, Issue Identified 

Delete ‘Capital Strategy Board (CSB)’ and replace 
with ‘senior officers’ 
 

Section 1.2, Item 22, Issue 
Identified  

Delete existing wording and replace with: 
  
“In paragraph 8.4, it currently says CSG 
Procurement will undertake financial assessments 
for Procurements valued under the Find a Tender 
thresholds of £189,330 for goods and services 
and £4,733,252 for works. Under the Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 there is no 
requirement for financial assessments at these 
lower values with the aim being to encourage 
small and medium size enterprises to bid for 
public contracts.” 
   

 
2. Recommend to Council that the Constitution be amended to incorporate the 

changes set out in the report and the amended versions attached at 
Appendices A to P subject to the following changes: 

 

Appendices A and B  
Article 2 (Members of the 
Council (Councillors)) 
Members Rights to Speak at 
Licensing Committees  

Delete proposed new section which set out 
Members rights to make representations on 
licensing applications and speak at committees.  
A comprehensive review of the Members 
Licensing Code will be undertaken in consultation 
with the Licensing Committee and will be reported 
to a future meeting of the Committee.   
   

Appendices A and B  
Article 2 (Members of the 
Council (Councillors)) 
Members Rights to Refer 
Matters to Parent Body 

Amend section 2.3 (e) to: 
 
Refer to Planning Committees ‘A, B and C’ and 
the ‘Strategic’ Planning Committee. 
 

8



 

5 

 Delete ‘If there is a proposal to refer any matter to 
the Planning Committee the referral must take 
place before voting on the officers’ 
recommendations commences’ as it is repetitious. 

Appendices A and B  
Article 2 (Members of the 
Council (Councillors)) 
Members Rights to Refer 
Matters to Parent Body 

Amend section 2.3 (f) to: 
 
Replace ‘Chairman’ with ‘Monitoring Officer’ and 
add ‘as soon as possible’ 
 
Replace ‘area planning committees’ with ‘planning 
committees’ 
 

Appendices A and B 
(Members of the Council) – 
Members Rights to Refer 
Matters to Parent Body 
 

Amend section 2.3 (g) to: 
 
Add ‘request’ 

Appendices K and L 
(Financial Regulations) 
Section 2.4 Budget 
Management & Monitoring 
 

Amend section 2.4.4 to say: 
 
Article 9 (Table of Chief Officers) details which 
posts within the council are designated as Chief 
Officer. 
 

Appendices K and L 
(Financial Regulations) 
Section 2.4 Budget 
Management & Monitoring 
 

Amend section 2.4.6 to: 
 
Delete ‘at Capital Strategy Board’ and replace 
with ‘by senior officers’ 
 

Appendices K and L 
(Financial Regulations) 
Section 3.3 Assets 
 

Amend section 2.4.6 to: 
 
Delete ‘Capital Strategy Board’  
 

Appendices M and O 
Contract Procedure Rules 
Section 4 Authorisation  

Section 4.3: 
 
Add ‘Annual Procurement Forward’ 
 

Appendices M and O 
Contract Procedure Rules 
Section 8 Acceptance 

Section 8.4: 
 
Delete ‘by’ and add ‘by the following:’ 
 
Delete ‘shall identify the relevant council officer(s)’ 
 
Delete the specific goods and works financial 
values and replace with ‘Find a Tender’ threshold 
for services/goods and works 
 
Delete the ‘Director of Finance’ and replace with 
‘Director of Resources (Section 151 Officer)’  
 

Appendices O and P 
Members Allowances 
Scheme 

Withdrawn from the agenda with a request that 
officers complete benchmarking and report back 
to a future meeting of the Committee. 

9



 

6 

 

 
3. Agree that a report be presented to the next meeting of the Committee on the 

implementation of changes to Article 2 (Members of the Council (Councillors)) 
section (f) in relation to Members Items. 

 
 

12.    MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 2018 - 2022 UPDATE AND DRAFT 
MEMBER DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME 2022-2026  
 
RESOLVED that the Committee: 
 
1. Note the sessions delivered since April 2021 as set out in Appendix A and 

provide feedback on sessions delivered to date.  
 
2. Agree the forward plan of Member Development sessions as set out in 

Appendix B.  
 
3. Approve the Draft Member Development and Induction Programme for 2022 to 

2026 as set out in Appendix C.  
 
4. Note that following the agreement of the Member Development and Induction 

Programme 2022 to 2026 that officers will commence work on assessment for 
Charter+ (Plus) status in Q2 2022/23. 

 
 
 

The meeting finished at 9.07pm 
 

10



 

 

 

Constitution and General Purposes 
Committee 

 
6 January 2022 

Title  
Proposals for the restructure of the Community 
Safety Team within the Assurance Group 

Report of 
Declan Khan, Assistant Director  
Counter Fraud, Community Safety & Protection 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          

Appendix A - Proposed staff structure for Community Safety 
Team 
Appendix B - Close of consultation document 
Appendix C - Equalities Impact Assessment 

Officer Contact Details  
Emily Bowler, Head of Assurance and Business Development 
(emily.bowler@barnet.gov.uk / 020 8359 4463) 

 

Summary 
 
This paper sets out the final proposed changes to the staffing structure of the Community 
Safety Team within the Assurance Group following a period of formal consultation with staff 
and trade unions from 3 November 2021 to 3 December 2021. 
 
This report seeks approval to implement this new structure for the Community Safety Team 
to come into effect from 1 February 2022. 
 
In line with the rationale, the proposals involve changes to a number of posts, including the 
establishment of new posts, deletion of others and amendments to some job descriptions, 
line management and fixed terms roles being made permanent. 

 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee approve the proposed 

changes to the Community Safety Team structure as set out in Appendix A 

and B. 

2. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee authorise the deletion 

and creation of the posts as set out in Appendix B.  

 

11

AGENDA ITEM 7

mailto:emily.bowler@barnet.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 7 

 
1. Why this report is needed 
 

 This report seeks approval to implement a new structure for the Community Safety Team 
within the Assurance Group.  A new structure has been finalised following a consultation 
period with staff and trade unions from 3 November 2021 to 3 December 2021. 

 
 Community Safety Team, within the Assurance Group supports the corporate priority of 

Clean, Safe and Well Run with a clear vision for ‘A place where our streets are clean and 
anti-social behaviour is dealt with so residents feel safe’.  

 
 The Community Safety Team’s objective are to ‘tackle all forms of anti-social behaviour, 

burglaries, hate crimes and other criminal activity including various types of fraud and 
environmental crime’.  

 
 Within the Community Safety Team, there are currently 28 posts (27.6 FTE) that are filled 

by 28 individuals (27.6 FTE), including 16 fixed term staff on one-year contracts. There is 
currently 1 vacant post. The new structure will expand the team to 30 posts - including the 
creation of a new Head of Service for Community Safety. 

 

 As part of the restructure all job descriptions have been amended and re-evaluated with 
some line management changes in-line with the new proposed structure and some fixed 
term roles have been made permanent.  

 

 Street-based officers within the Community Safety Team will be issued amended contracts 
that reflect the changes to terms and conditions.  These changes include, continuing to 
work the normal 36-hour week but adopt a working shift pattern as well as receiving 
renumeration for any weekend or bank holiday work. 
 

 In-line with the council’s Managing Organisational Change Policy, formal consultation was 
launched for a 30-day period on 3 November, running to 3 December, with the new 
structures proposed to take effect from 1 February 2022.  

 

2. Reasons for recommendations 
 

 The past 6 years have seen a change in the way that our communities interact, and this 
has had an impact on crime and disorder taking place in and around the borough of 
Barnet.  
 

 Up until the beginning of 2021 the Community Safety Team consisted of only 6 street-
based officers covering all 21 wards in Barnet. These officers operated on a 9am-5pm 
basis Monday to Friday. 

 
 Crime statistics show a general increase in crimes such as fly tipping, anti-social 

behaviour, burglary and acts of violence as well as hate crimes. Whilst these have been 
investigated there has not been any noticeable increase in the identification and capture of 
perpetrators leading to prosecutions or any other sanctions by council officers. In many 
cases attempts to further these cases have failed; especially in relation to fly tipping. 

 
 In addition, concerns of our residents relate to: 

 visible presence of council community safety officers 

12



 

Page 3 of 7 

 not knowing who to contact, and  

 waiting long periods for any meaningful council action to take place if at all.  
This has resulted in a significant increase in the perception of crime in the 
borough. 
 

 The Barnet Plan priority of ‘Clean, Safe and Well Run’ describes our vision that Barnet is 
‘a place where our streets are clean and anti-social behaviour is dealt with so residents 
feel safe. Providing good quality, customer friendly services in all that we do.’ The 
Community Safety Team’s objective will be to ‘tackle all forms of anti-social behaviour, 
burglaries, hate crimes and other criminal activity including various types of fraud and 
environmental crime’.  

 
 The redesign of the Community Safety Team aims to: 

 Provide a uniformed and highly visible, semi-official patrolling presence in our 
communities by seeking to reduce environmental crimes including fly tipping, 
littering and anti-social behaviour as well as combat the fear of general crime by 
providing reassurance and assistance in order to create a safer, more pleasant 
living environment within our communities. 

 Adopt a new 7-day shift based working pattern to ensure the streets of Barnet are 
patrolled by uniformed council officers between the hours of 8am-8pm. 

 Increase resource to create a ward-based approach to deal with community issues 

 Increase the visible officer presence on the street 

 Improve productivity and outcomes by exploring opportunities for different 
enforcement operational models 

 Enhance joint working/multi-tasking across the range of functions by creating a 
creating a specialist investigation and enforcement capability for the council.  

 Work with partner organisations to address issues of anti-social behaviour such as 
frauds, fly-tipping, noise nuisance and illegal parking 

 Obtain and collate intelligence on anti-social behaviour, suspicious conduct and 
criminal activity in order to instigate remedial counter measures. 

 Be a point of liaison for Police, Law Enforcement Agencies (Enviro Agency, DVLA 
etc), MOPAC, Home Office as well as Council Departments, Partners and 
Community Groups to enable an effective coordinated response. 
 

 Overall, the feedback to the consultation has been positive and supportive, and the 
rationale is understood. However, concerns were raised about weekend work 
remuneration and on call out of hours rotas as well as officer personal protection 
equipment and uniform. These concerns are addressed in the closure report.  
 

 The detail of the proposed changes, as well as a summary of consultation feedback and 
responses, can be found in the Consultation Closure Report and the final staffing structure 
in the appendices. 

 

3. Alternative options considered and not recommended 
 

 The alternative option is to not implement the new structure and keep the current 
structure. 
 

 This option is not recommended as the current structure does not align with the needs of 
the council in supporting the corporate priorities of Clean, Safe and Well Run, in that it is 
unable to have any meaningful impact on creating a place where our streets are clean and 

13



 

Page 4 of 7 

antisocial behaviour is dealt with, so residents feel safe as well as providing good quality, 
customer friendly services in all that we do. 

 
4. Post decision implementation 

 Upon approval of the recommendations, the following actions will be taken to implement 
the new structure: 

Activity Purpose Timetable 

Constitution and General 
Purposes Committee 

To obtain committee 
approval on the proposed 
structure prior to 
implementation. 

6 January 2022 

Recruitment  Commence recruitment to 
vacant posts 

17 January 2022 

Implementation Restructure of the 
Community Safety service 
in line with these 
proposals becomes 
effective – including all 
staff assimilated into new 
roles issued, new job 
descriptions and job titles. 
 
Where relevant, staff will 
be offered new contracts 
with changes to terms and 
conditions issued. 

1 February 2022 

 

 Street-based officers within the Community Safety Team will be offered amended 
contracts that reflect the changes to terms and conditions.  These changes include, 
continuing to work the normal 36-hour week but adopt a working shift pattern as well as 
receiving renumeration for any weekend or bank holiday work. 

5. Implications of decision  
 

 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 The work of the Community Safety Team supports the corporate priority of Clean, Safe 
and Well Run with a clear vision for ‘A place where our streets are clean and anti-social 
behaviour is dealt with so residents feel safe’. 
 

 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The current interim structure for Community Safety Team is already funded in-year and the 
longer-term proposals are included within the 2022/23 budget planning process. 

 

14



 

Page 5 of 7 

5.2.2 Additional annual funding to deliver the restructure of £0.877m for future years, was 
approved at Policy and Resource Committee on 9th December 2021. 

 
5.2.3 The pressure is partly mitigated by an additional annual income target of £0.431m, related 

to increased Fixed Penalty Notices generated by the Community Safety Team. 
 
5.2.4 The net pressure of funding the new structure is £0.446m. This will obtain final approval at 

Full Council in March 2022. 
 

 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 In accordance with the Council’s Constitution, Article 7- the Constitution and General 
Purposes terms of reference includes responsibility for staffing matters (i.e., salaries and 
conditions of service) other than those within the remit of the Chief Officer Appointment 
Panel. 
 

5.3.2 The Scheme of delegation’s state that Executive Directors only have delegated authority 
to undertake service restructures affecting less than 20 employees. As this restructure 
affects more than 20 employees within Community Safety, committee approval is required.  
 

5.3.3 The Council’s HR Regulations state that where the following issues arise from an 
organisational restructure, the restructure will be considered to have major implications 
and a report must be submitted to Constitution and General Purposes Committee for 
approval: Terms and conditions of employment are to be introduced (this excludes 
compliance with statutory requirements) or replaced (this means a new term of significant 
condition).   

 

5.3.4 The consultation process with staff is required in line with the Council’s obligations under 
Information and Consultation of Employees (ICE) Regulations. 

 
5.3.5 The restructure has been carried out in accordance with the Council’s Managing 

Organisational Change policy. Consultation with Trade Unions and collective and 
individual staff consultation has concluded. The new structure can now be implemented 
subject to the approval of this Committee in accordance with the Managing Change Policy. 

 
 Insight 

 
5.4.1 Not applicable 

 
 Social Value 

 
5.5.1 Not applicable in context of this report 

 
 Risk Management 

 
5.6.1 There are inherent risks with creating a street-based patrol service. These risks are being 

mitigated by the issuing of High Visibility uniforms and personal protective equipment 
which includes Stab proof clothing as well as Body Warn video to allow officers to carry 
out their duties safely.  
 

5.6.2 These arrangements will be reviewed every 3 months to ensure that changing and 

15



 

Page 6 of 7 

emerging risks are considered. 

 Equalities and Diversity  

5.7.1 The 2010 Equalities Act outlines the provisions of the Public Sector Equality Duty which 
requires Public Bodies to have due regard for: 

 Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act 

 Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it 

 Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and persons who do not share it. 

 
5.7.2 The purpose of this duty is to integrate considerations of equality into day-to-day 

business and keep them under review in decision making, the design of policies and the 
delivery of service. 

 
5.7.3 The proposed changes have been assessed in an Equalities Impact Assessment 

(Appendix C) to understand the impact on the protected characteristics outlines in the 
2010 Equalities Act. 

 Corporate Parenting 

5.8.1 The changes have no direct impact on looked after children or care leavers. 

 Consultation and Engagement 
 

5.9.1 In line with the council’s Managing Organisational Change policy, a 30-day formal 
consultation period was launched on 3 November and lasted until 3 December 2021. 
 

5.9.2 The table below sets the detailed consultation timetable: 

Date scheduled  Consultation activity 

w/c 25 October  Proposals shared with Trade Unions via 
email 

3 November - 3 December 2021 Opening of 30-day consultation period  
Open consultation meeting with all staff in-
scope 
Consultation document circulated to all in-
scope staff via email following the opening 
consultation meeting 
Following opening of consultation, personal 
meetings with staff members ran during the 
consultation process (employee can bring 
a trade union repetitive if they wish) 

3 December 2021 Formal close of consultation 

6 - 8 December 2021 Final review of all feedback and Final 
Consultation responses prepared 

9 December 2021 Meet with Staff and Trade Unions to 
feedback on the Final Consultation 
response. 

16



 

Page 7 of 7 

 
5.9.3 Comments and ideas were invited from all staff affected by the proposals as part of the 

formal consultation.  There were several options to give feedback or to ask questions: 

 In writing 

 Individually 

 Collectively through organised meetings 

 With Union representatives. 
 

5.9.4 Every effort was made to communicate fully and openly in a timely manner with all staff 
affected by the proposal.  

 
5.9.5 The launch meeting offered the opportunity to hear the details of the proposed structure, 

changes to Terms and Conditions, and information about the consultation.  
 
5.9.6 Members of either UNISON or GMB were able to discuss the proposal with their union 

representative and feed views back through them. 
   
5.9.7 During the 30-day consultation period, formal and informal discussions have been held 

with all affected staff members to gather individual feedback.  We received a number of 
email enquiries which were responded to on an individual basis. In addition, UNISON 
submitted a formal submission on the proposals on behalf of its’ members within the 
service. 

 
5.9.8 All questions asked or clarification sought (where this was not personal) were collected 

and responded to in the form of a FAQ document which was updated and shared every 
week throughout the consultation.  Personal individual questions were responded to 
directly so that all staff affected by the proposals have had the benefit of any additional 
information where requested. 
 

5.9.9 The detail of the proposed changes as well as a summary of consultation feedback and 
responses can be found in the Consultation Report and Final Proposals 

 
5.9.10 A staff briefing was held on the 9 December to present the findings of the consultation 

and highlight the themes that emerged from the feedback.  

 Environmental Impact 

5.10.1 N/A 

6. Background papers 

 Policy and Resources Committee 30 September 2021, Agenda Item 13 Assurance Group 
Update 

 Policy and Resources Committee 9th December 2021, Agenda item 7, Business planning  

 

 

6 January 2022 Approval at Constitution and General 
Purposes Committee 

17

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10889&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10889&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=692&MId=10889&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



Clair Green
Executive Director of Assurance

Clair Green
Executive Director of Assurance

Declan Khan
Assistant Director - Counter Fraud, Community Safety and Protection

Declan Khan
Assistant Director - Counter Fraud, Community Safety and Protection

Head of Community Safety, Enforcement CCTV and Intelligence  
(NEW POST) 

 

Head of Community Safety, Enforcement CCTV and Intelligence  
(NEW POST) 

 

Community Safety Operations Manager
 

Community Safety Operations Manager
 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

CCTV and Intelligence Manager
 

CCTV and Intelligence Manager
 

Senior Partnership 
Performance 

Analyst 
 

Senior Partnership 
Performance 

Analyst 
 

Intelligence Officer  
(NEW POST) 

 

Intelligence Officer  
(NEW POST) 

 

Intelligence Officer  Intelligence Officer  

Business and 
MARAC Support 

Officer (NEW POST)
 

Business and 
MARAC Support 

Officer (NEW POST)
 

Prevent Co-ordinator
 and Hate Crime Lead
Prevent Co-ordinator
 and Hate Crime Lead

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF BARNET 

Restructure of Community Safety 

Consultation Closure Report  
December 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

21



 

2 

Policy Summary 

This document is provided under Section 188 of the Trade Union and Labour relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992 and in line with the council’s obligations under Information and 
Consultation of Employees (ICE) Regulations to inform and consult employees about proposed 
changes to their working circumstances.  This document constitutes the end of the consultation.  

The consultation has taken place in accordance with the Council’s Policy on Managing 
Organisational Change, which is within the Employee Handbook on the Council Intranet site. 

Decision Making 

This proposal involves changes to the structure and workforce.  These proposals are sponsored by 
Clair Green, Executive Director of Assurance, and are supported by Declan Khan, Assistant Director 
- Counter Fraud, Community Safety & Protection.  

Following the closure of consultation, the final proposals will require approval for implementation 
from the Constitution and General Purposes Committee.  

  

22



 

3 

 

1 Consultation - Executive Summary Information ....................................................... 4 

1.1 Responsible Officers ...................................................................................... 4 

1.2 Introduction................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 Staff in Scope ................................................................................................. 4 

2 Background ............................................................................................................ 5 

2.1 Community Safety and the Barnet Plan .......................................................... 5 

2.3 Redesign of the Community Safety service ..................................................... 5 

3 Consultation Process .............................................................................................. 6 

4 Consultation Feedback and Responses .................................................................... 8 

5 Final Proposals ..................................................................................................... 16 

5.1 Final staffing structure (Appendix 2) ............................................................. 16 

5.2 Summary of final job role changes................................................................ 17 

5.3 Final changes to service delivery and operating model ................................. 19 

5.4 Changes to Terms and Conditions................................................................. 20 

6 Decision Making ................................................................................................... 20 

7 Additional Support ............................................................................................... 20 

8 Appendices ........................................................................................................... 21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

23



 

4 

1 Consultation - Executive Summary Information 

1.1 Responsible Officers 

Role Name Contact 

Lead Officer Declan Khan declan.khan@barnet.gov.uk 

Sponsor Clair Green clair.green@barnet.gov.uk 

HR Business Partner Vandana Mahan vandana.mahan@barnet.gov.uk 

1.2 Introduction 

Following the staff consultation this document outlines the final proposals for the new structure 
for the Community Safety Team, as well as addressing feedback from the consultation. The new 
structure is designed to focus resources as effectively as possible and improve the service offer 
made to Barnet residents.  

The document outlines changes to the structure, the rationale for these changes and the next 
steps in regard to the selection process and implementation. 

1.3 Staff in Scope 

There are currently 28 posts (27.6 FTE) that are filled by 28 individuals (27.6 FTE), including 16 
fixed term staff. There is currently 1 vacant post.  

The current structure of the Community Safety Team includes the following posts: 

JOB TITLE GRADE STATUS 

1 x Community Safety Manager Grade K Filled 

1 x Community Safety Manager (CCTV) Grade K Vacant 

1 x Prevent Co-ordinator and Hate Crime 
Lead 

Grade K Filled 

1 x Community Safety Analyst Grade G Filled 

1 x Community Safety MARAC Project 
Coordinator 

Grade G Filled 

1 x Community Safety Project Officer-  
Fixed term contract 

Grade I 
The current post holder is being 
redeployed 

1 x Senior Partnership Performance Analyst Grade J Filled 

6 x Investigation and Enforcement Officer - 
Permanent contract 

Grade I Filled 

15 x Investigation and Enforcement Officer - 
Fixed term contract  

Grade I Filled 

In addition to the staff in Community Safety Team the proposals include the transfer in of one post 
within the Corporate Anti-Fraud Team (CAFT) as below. 

JOB TITLE GRADE STATUS 

Intelligence Officer  Grade G Filled 

24



 

5 

2 Background 

2.1 Community Safety and the Barnet Plan 

The Barnet Plan vision is that: ‘We care about the borough and want it to be a great place to live, 
work and visit.  Listening to and working with residents and others, we want people to have 
opportunities to live healthy and fulfilling lives in safe and thriving communities. Providing good 
quality customer service in all that we do’. 

The Barnet Plan 2021-2025 outlines the key outcomes of the council and how it will work to 
achieve those outcomes.  The council and its partners will focus on four priorities over the next 
four years to realise its’ vision: 

• Clean, safe and well run: a place where our streets are clean and antisocial behaviour is 
dealt with so residents feel safe. Providing good quality, customer friendly services in all 
that we do 

• Family Friendly: creating a Family Friendly Barnet, enabling opportunities for our children 
and young people to achieve their best 

• Healthy: a place with fantastic facilities for all ages, enabling people to live happy and 
healthy lives 

• Thriving: a place fit for the future, where all residents, businesses and visitors benefit from 
improved sustainable infrastructure and opportunity. 

Under the council’s priority of ‘Clean, safe and well run’ the focus is on: 

• Improving Customer Service 

• Providing better environmental services and a cleaner borough 

• Address issues of anti-social behaviour such as frauds, fly-tipping and noise nuisance  

• Ensure robust financial management 

• Unlocking and optimising the potential of Parks and Open Space. 

Community Safety Team, within the Assurance Group supports the corporate priority of Clean, 
Safe and Well Run with a clear vision for ‘A place where our streets are clean and anti-social 
behaviour is dealt with so residents feel safe’.  

2.3 Redesign of the Community Safety service 

The full rationale and proposed staffing structure for the Community Safety Team was outlined in 
depth in the opening consultation document presented to staff on 3 November 2021.   

In summary, the redesign of the Community Safety Team includes the following main aims to: 

• Provide a uniformed and highly visible, semi-official patrolling presence in our communities 
by seeking to reduce environmental crimes including fly tipping, littering and anti-social 
behaviour as well as combat the fear of general crime by providing reassurance and 
assistance in order to create a safer, more pleasant living environment within our 
communities. 

• Adopt a new 7-day shift based working pattern to ensure the streets of Barnet are 
patrolled by uniformed council officers between the hours of 8am-8pm. 

• Increase resource to create a ward-based approach to deal with community issues 

• Increase the visible officer presence on the street 

• Improve productivity and outcomes by exploring opportunities for different enforcement 
operational models 

25



 

6 

• Enhance joint working/multi-tasking across the range of functions by creating a creating a 
specialist investigation and enforcement capability for the council.  

• Work with partner organisations to address issues of anti-social behaviour such as frauds, 
fly-tipping, noise nuisance and illegal parking 

• Obtain and collate intelligence on anti-social behaviour, suspicious conduct and criminal 
activity in order to instigate remedial counter measures. 

• Be a point of liaison for Police, Law Enforcement Agencies (Enviro Agency, DVLA etc) 
MOPAC, Home Office as well as Council Departments, Partners and Community Groups to 
enable an effective coordinated response. 

3 Consultation Process 

The 30-day consultation for restructure of the Community Safety Team opened on Wednesday 3 
December and closed on Friday 3 December 2021.   

This section outlines how we engaged and consulted with staff, and how we received feedback 
and ideas.  It also summarises the final timetable for the approval process and the proposed 
restructure.  

Officer views are particularly sought on these elements: 

1. The aims of the proposed redesign of the Community Safety Team and proposed changes to 
terms and conditions 

2. Responsibilities and accountabilities in the role profiles effectively represents the areas of 
work 

3. The division of specific areas of work for the team 

4. The line managements arrangements. 

3.1 Timetable 

The timetable for the consultation and proposed implementation was divided into two phases.  

Phase 1: Consultation  

• Staff Briefing 

• Collective Consultation (including Trade Unions) 

• Individual Consultation (individual Employees) 

Phase 2: Proposed Approval and Implementation  

• Approval by Constitution and General Purposes Committee - 6 January 2022 

• Implementation of new structure  

During the formal consultation period staff were able to consider the proposal, give feedback 
through personal sessions, email and if they wish, discussion with their trade unions.   

The consultation ended on 3 December 2021.  

Following the end of the consultation a review of feedback and any necessary amendments have 
been made.  The final proposal will be reported to the Constitution and General Purposes 
Committee on 6 January for decision and approval.  

Once the new structure has been implemented, a recruitment process will begin for any vacant, or 
new posts within the service. An interview training session will also be offered to any interested 
staff to prepare them for the recruitment process.   

26



 

7 

The new structure will be implemented from 1st February 2022 and any vacancies will be fill after 
approval at Constitution and General Purposes Committee. 

The table below sets the detailed consultation and recruitment timetable: 

 

3.2 Responding to the Consultation 

Comments and ideas were invited from all staff affected by the proposals as part of the 30 days 
consultation.   There were several options to give feedback or to ask questions: 

• In writing 

• Individually 

• Collectively through organised meetings 

• With Union representatives. 

Every effort was made to communicate fully and openly in a timely manner with all staff affected 
by the proposal. 

Collectively  

The launch meeting offered the opportunity to hear the details of the proposed structure, and 
information about the consultation.  

Unions 

Members of either UNISON or GMB were able to discuss the proposal with their union 
representative and feed views back through them.   

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)  

All questions asked or clarification sought (where this was not personal) were collected and 
responded to in the form of a FAQ document.  Personal individual questions were responded to 

Date scheduled  Consultation activity 

w/c 25 October  Proposals shared with Trade Unions via email 

3 November - 3 December 2021 Opening of 30-day consultation period  

Open consultation meeting with all staff in-scope 

Consultation document circulated to all in-scope staff via 
email following the opening consultation meeting 

Following opening of consultation, personal meetings with 
staff members ran during the consultation process (employee 
can bring a trade union repetitive if they wish) 

3 December 2021 Formal close of consultation 

6 - 8 December 2021 Final review of all feedback and Final Consultation responses 
prepared 

9 December 2021 Meet with Staff and Trade Unions to feedback on the Final 
Consultation response. 

6 January 2022 Approval at Constitution and General Purposes Committee 

End of January 2022 Applications open for vacant posts 

1 February 2022 Implementation of new structure 

27



 

8 

directly so that all staff affected by the proposals have had the benefit of any additional 
information where requested.  

4 Consultation Feedback and Responses 

During the 30-day consultation period, formal and informal discussions have been held with all 
affected staff members to gather individual feedback.  We received a number of email enquiries 
which were responded to on an individual basis. In addition, UNISON submitted a formal 
submission on the proposals on behalf of its’ members within the service. 

This feedback has been reviewed and considered by the Assistant Director of Counter Fraud, 
Community Safety and Protection.   

Subsequently, the final proposals include changes to the staffing structure of the Community 
Safety Team, and individual job descriptions.  

4.1 Staff feedback 

A final set of FAQs (Appendix 1) has been distributed to all affected staff which answers the 
frequently asked questions received through the consultation period. 

We received feedback on a range of areas:  

4.1.1 The aims of the proposed redesign of the Community Safety Team 

We received positive feedback to aim of the design of the Community Safety Team.  There was 
clear support for the service to be split into two defined areas: 

• Community Safety Operations 

• CCTV and Intelligence. 

4.1.2 Proposed changes to terms and conditions 

The proposals outlined a number of changes to terms and conditions: 

• Change to working hours 

To address the issues around the team’s exposure and contact with our residents, we proposed 
that all street-based officers adopt a working shift pattern covering 8am to 8pm Mondays to 
Fridays with weekend and bank holiday working on a rota basis covering 10am to 5pm on 
Saturdays and 10am to 4pm on Sundays and bank holidays. Normal weekday shift patterns will be 
8am to 4pm, 10am to 6pm and 12pm to 8pm. 

You said Our response 

How many hours will I be contracted to work 
each week? 

All staff in the Community Safety Team would 
continue to work 36 hours per week.   

Street-based officers will be expected to work 36 
hours spread across the 7-day week. 

Street-based Team Leaders will work 36 hours 
Monday-Friday.  In addition, they will be expected 
be on-call at the weekend (cover 1 week out of 7 
weeks to answer any out of normal working hours 
calls).  

28



 

9 

We receive concerns about working at the 
weekend - including impact on family life. 

To address the issues around the team’s exposure 
and contact with our residents, street-based 
officers will adopt a working shift pattern 
covering: 

• Mondays to Fridays - 8am to 8pm  

• Saturdays - 10am to 5pm  

• Sundays and bank holidays - 10am to 4pm 

We have reviewed the shift rota to reduce the 
number of staff expected to work on the 
weekends from 4 to 2 officers on either a 
Saturday or Sunday. 

The new rota is available at Appendix 2. 

By reducing the number of officers from 4 to 2 
street-based officers at the weekend we are still 
able to provide an increased service but reduced 
the impact on family life. 

We envisage this will mean street-based officers 
will work on either a Saturday or Sunday 
approximately every 4 weeks. 

Street-based officers will also be able to ‘swop’ 
shifts with colleagues if they are unable to work 
on an allocated day. 

In addition, we will also change the non-working 
days to allow for officers to have a consecutive 
weekend - for example, if you are on the rota on a 
Saturday - your non-working days will be Sunday 
and Monday, if you are on the rota for a Sunday - 
your non-working days will be Friday and 
Saturday. 

You asked how you would be reimbursed for 
working at the weekend. 

In addition to being paid your normal 36 hours, 
street-based officers will get an additional 
enhancement for working at the weekend (based 
on their standard hourly rate):  

Remuneration for weekend and bank holiday 
working in line with the Council’s Overtime and 
Enhanced Payments Policy.  

- 25% per normal hourly rate on a Saturday 
(for example, you will get paid an 
additional 0.25 of your normal hourly rate 
for working on a Saturday)  

- 50% per normal hourly rate on Sunday (for 
example, you will get paid an additional 
0.5 of your normal hourly rate for working 
on a Sunday)  

29

https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies
https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies


 

10 

100% per normal hourly rate on a Bank Holiday 
(for example, you will get paid an additional hour 
(paid per hour) of your normal hourly rate for 
working on a bank holiday). 

Any staff working over the usual 36 hours will be 
paid over-time as set out in the Council’s 
Overtime and Enhanced Payments Policy. For 
example, staff will be invited to work overtime at 
special community events.  

 

•  On call rota for Team Leaders and Managers 

We proposed that street-based Team Leaders and managers will be required to be available on an 
Out of Hours ‘on Call’ rota basis to deal with any Community Safety issues raised by police or other 
partner in relation to crime. This role will not require attendance at any incident but may require 
dissemination of information to senior management and Ward councillors. The appropriate 
remuneration package will be applied. 

Assistant Director of Counter Fraud, Community Safety & Protection and the Head of Community 
Safety, Enforcement CCTV and Intelligence will also be required to be on the Out of Hours ‘on Call’ 
rota. There will not be any additional remuneration attached to these duties as it falls within the 
remit of the job description. 

You said Our response 

You asked for more information on the plans 
for managers on-call rota  

The Assistant Director of Counter Fraud, 
Community Safety & Protection, the Head of 
Community Safety, Enforcement CCTV & 
Intelligence, Community Safety Operations 
Manager, CCTV and Intelligence Manager and 3 
street-based Team Leaders will be required to be 
on the Out of Hours ‘on call’ rota.  

Assuming all posts are filled, these 7 managers 
will work to a rota which will mean they will be 
expected to cover 1 week out of every 7 weeks to 
answer any out of normal working hours calls (for 
example Monday-Fridays 8pm-8am and Saturdays 
and Sundays). 

When on-call we envisage that managers will only 
be taking calls from police or other council service 
who require input/advice from the Community 
Safety Team. This will not be a public information 
line.  

On-call managers will not be required to attend 
the office or any part of the borough whilst on 
call. The function is purely as a point of contact 
for partner agencies or internal departments. 

30

https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies
https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies


 

11 

The Community Safety Operations Manager, 
CCTV and Intelligence Manager and 3 street-
based Team Leaders will receive an additional fee 
of £1500 per annum added to their normal salary.  

We will review the on-call rota after the first 3 months to assess the number, and type of calls 
received.  If the level of calls is low during this period, we will consider whether an on-call rota is 
required in the long term, and what alternative provision may be required. 

• Officer protection (and equipment) 

The safety of our officers is always paramount.  Street-based officers will be issued with Body 
Worn Video (BWV) to wear when conducting uniformed patrols.  Officers will be supplied with 
stab proof clothing and slash proof gloves to wear on patrols when deemed appropriate. 

You said Our response 

You asked if we would supply head torches as 
standard equipment 

Yes, we will provide head torches 

You asked if we could issue uniform suitable 
for winter wear 

Yes, we will provide a range of uniform suitable 
for the winter including winter gloves, coats and 
hats. 

You asked if all street-based officers be 
required to wear stab proof clothing whilst 
working on the street 

Each officer will be provided with their own stab 
proof clothing as part of their uniform.   

We are currently assessing options so that all 
officers are given the correct level of Personal 
Protective Equipment in line with their roles and 
requirements.  

This protective clothing will be worn when the 
service deems it to be appropriate. 

 

4.1.3 Responsibilities and accountabilities in the role profiles effectively represents the areas of 
work 

We asked for comments on the roles, responsibilities and accountability defined in the new 
structure and role profiles.  We received a range of comments and questions to clarify the new 
roles profile of the Head of Service in relation to the Channel and PREVENT activities. The role 
profile has been updated accordingly.  

We acknowledge that the service is currently working with a number of vacancies at management 
level which has led to a number of additional duties on current staff at a range of levels.  The new 
structure aims to clearly define roles and responsibilities with a view to reducing onerous 
administrative and oversight tasks to allow street-based officer roles to function efficiently. 

You said Our response 

Will the Community Safety Operations 
Manager and the CCTV and Intelligence 
Manager manage budgets? 

 

No - due to the complexity of the community 
safety budget and funding streams management 
of the budgets through BDM Integra will be 
transferred to the new Head of Service and 
Assistant Director. 

31



 

12 

Who will deal with members enquiries 
regarding problems with anti-social behaviour 
and environmental protection issues? 

In the new structure, the Community Safety 
Operations Manager, Head of Service and the 
Assistant Director will be the main point of 
contact for all ward councillors to raise concerns 
about anti-social behaviour and environmental 
protection issues.   

Members Enquiries will remain a method of 
alerting the Community Safety Team to problems 
and we expect the Team Leaders to work with the 
Community Safety Operations Manager to keep 
councillors up to date on progress. 

Will street-based Team Leaders be expected to 
carry out street-based duties? 

Yes. Team Leaders will be expected to carry out 
street-based duties within their allocated wards.  

We will review the current processes to ensure 
they are streamlined to reduce the time spent to 
complete investigations.  All unnecessary 
administrative work will be removed from their 
daily tasking. It is envisaged that no more than 
50% of their role will be administrative for their 
assigned area. The remaining 50% will be 
dedicated to work on their allocated wards. 

Investigation and Enforcement Officers will be 
expected to take on the full investigation of a 
case with Team Leaders offering advice and 
guidance as required. 

Have the job descriptions been compared to 
current market rate for similar roles? 

All job descriptions have been evaluated 
following the normal HR process and moderated 
by Unions. The roles have been created on the 
business requirements and priorities of the 
council to deliver a community safety service 
within the borough of Barnet. 

 
4.1.4 The division of specific areas of work for the team 

We received a few comments regarding specific area of work for the team. 

You said Our response 

Is there scope to create a dedicated 
Environmental Enforcement Manager? 

No - The role of Environmental Enforcement is 
wide ranging. Elements that fall within the remit 
of Community Safety Team will be within the 
scope of the Community Safety Operations 
Manager. Other areas of Environmental 
Enforcement will be handled by Environmental 
Health Officers or partners with a specific remit. 

 

  

32



 

13 

4.1.5 The line managements arrangements 

The comments we received regarding line management arrangements in relation to the creation 
of a Head of service post and 3 Team Leader posts were positive, with no adverse views on the 
new structural arrangements in relation to the CCTV & Intelligence Manager post. 

 

Additional Themes: 

Furthermore, feedback received from staff through the consultation period identified further 
themes: 

4.1.6 Training and Development 

Training and development will be offered following the implementation of the new structure.  
Throughout the consultation, staff asked for more information about the training. 

You said Our response 

What formal training will you offer? All officers will be offered training, including 
investigation and intelligences courses. 

Investigation training will be given to all street-
based officers which will cover the law and 
preliminary investigations, quality witness 
statements and investigative interviewing 
techniques.  These courses will lead to a 
professional IRRV Award in Core Investigation 
skills. 

Intelligence training will be offered to Intelligence 
Officers - this will include introduction to 
intelligence, open sources and comms data 
acquisition and intelligence development. 

This training will be arranged for early 2022. 

In addition, we will offer management training to all new Team Leaders to manage staff 
performance and objective setting.  This will enable better allocation and monitoring of the tasks 
given to officers. 

4.1.7 Recruitment 

We received a number of questions to our approach to recruit to the new and vacant posts. 

Once the new structure has been implemented, a recruitment process will begin for any vacant or 
new posts within the service.  

Interview training sessions will also be provided to any interested staff to prepare them for the 
recruitment process.   

You said Our response 

When will you interview for the vacant posts? All vacant posts will be advertised following 
approval of the new structure at Constitution and 
General Purposes Committee towards the end of 
January 2022. 

33



 

14 

Will the Team Leaders posts be assimilated 
from existing roles? 

No, the new Team Leader roles will be advertised 
internally through the usual recruitment process. 

Will Investigation and Enforcement Officers 
need to apply for the new permanent posts? 

 

All current Investigation and Enforcement (I&E) 
officers on permanent contract posts will be 
assimilated into the new Investigation and 
Enforcement officer posts. 

Investigation and Enforcement officers on one-
year fixed term contracts will be invited to submit 
a formal confirmation of interest in the new 
permanent posts.   

Can I apply for more than one role in the new 
structure? 

Yes - all officers are invited to apply for any of the 
vacant posts within the new structure.  

Will you issue new contracts? Yes, all staff within the Community Safety Team 
will be issued new contracts which will include 
the new Terms and Conditions. 

 

4.2 Unison feedback 

We received a number of questions from Barnet Unison via email.  We have summarised their 
comments and our responses. 

Unison questions (summarised) Our response 

Has any data been provided from the council’s 
experiences of the contracted service in terms 
of the design of the service? For example, has 
any data been provided to show peaks and 
troughs of work?   

Does the current contracted service provide an 
on-call system and what does it look like? 

Does the current contracted service run a shift 
system and what does their rota look like? 

Are any lessons that can be learned from their 
approach in order we avoid any pitfalls.  

We currently contract an external provider who 
provides a uniformed patrol to issue FPNs. Peaks 
and troughs are in alignment with seasonal 
activities that take place in and around the 
borough. 

The current provider does not have an on-call 
system. They work up until 8pm Monday to 
Friday and also cover the borough at the 
weekends. They are deployed to areas around the 
borough by the Community Safety Manager. If 
there are events taking place, they are requested 
to patrol those areas. 

There are currently 4-6 contracted officers 
working in uniform every day covering 8-10 hour 
duties. 

It is important that staff are remunerated for 
working unsocial hours/weekends, and is 
something UNISON takes seriously.  

There have been some changes to the pay for 
some grades recently including for those staff 
above Grade F in order to account for working 
weekends e.g. Street Scene supervisors.  

Creating a shift-based service is critical to the 
delivery of the service and ensuring that staff are 
remunerated for working unsocial 
hours/weekends very important. We have 
following the council’s agreed policy on 
remuneration. 

34



 

15 

Please could you provide a copy of the proposed 
rota and the agreed rota following consultation.   

Please note that Unified Reward consultations 
are about to start, and the above payments may 
be subject to change.  

We will include an updated rota as port of the 
‘Close of consultation’ documentation. 

Following the Unified Reward consultation, we 
will apply the new rates where appropriate. 

It is important that sufficient resources are 
provided for the admin roles that are needed to 
successfully support the launch of this new in-
house service.  

The amount of admin resource required to 
enable a new structure to embed and deliver 
can be underestimated. Perhaps this could be 
included as part of a built-in review of the 
service 

We have considered the requirement for 
additional administrative support and have 
increased capacity to two Business Support 
Officers. 

 

Will you build in a review period for any 
restructure in order that the service can swiftly 
flex to change of circumstances. 

We will review the new service structure after the 
first 3 months.  We will also complete a 6th month 
assessment of performance 

 

 

  

35



 

16 

5 Final Proposals 

5.1 Final staffing structure (Appendix 2) 

 

Clair Green
Executive Director of Assurance

Declan Khan
Assistant Director - Counter Fraud, Community Safety and Protection

Head of Community Safety, Enforcement CCTV and Intelligence  
(NEW POST) 

 

Community Safety Operations Manager
 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Team 
Leader (NEW POST)

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer

 

CCTV and Intelligence Manager
 

Senior Partnership 
Performance 

Analyst 
 

Intelligence Officer  
(NEW POST) 

 

Intelligence Officer  

Business and 
MARAC Support 

Officer (NEW POST)
 

Prevent Co-ordinator
 and Hate Crime Lead

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

Business Support 
Officer (CST) 
 (NEW POST)

 

  

36



 

17 

5.2 Summary of final job role changes 

Following feedback from staff and Unison, the job roles have been reviewed which has led to 
some amendments.  These job profiles have been evaluated and moderated with Trade Unions. 

Table 1 - Summarising the job role changes 

Current Job title 
Current 
Status 

Proposed Job title Grade 
Change 
Description 

NEW ROLE VACANT 
Head of Community Safety, 
Enforcement CCTV and 
Intelligence 

Grade 7 

Open to 
recruitment once 
restructure 
approved 

1 x Community 
Safety Manager 

Filled 
Community Safety 
Operations Manager 

Grade K 
 

JD updated – 
current post 
holder assimilated 
into new role 

1 x Community 
Safety Manager 
(CCTV & Intel) 

VACANT 
CCTV and Intelligence 
Manager 

Grade K 

Open to 
recruitment once 
restructure 
approved 

NEW ROLE VACANT 
3 x Investigation and 
Enforcement Team Leaders 

Grade J 
 

Open to 
recruitment once 
restructure 
approved 

6 x Investigation 
and Enforcement 
Officer - 
Permanent 
contract 

Filled 
18 x Investigation and 
Enforcement Officer 

Grade I 

Current post 
holders on 
permanent 
positions will be 
assimilated to the 
new post. 

15 x Investigation 
and Enforcement 
Officer - Fixed 
Term Contract  

Filled Posts deleted N/A 

Posts deleted  
Current 
Investigation and 
Enforcement 
Officers on fixed 
term contracts will 
be assimilated to 
the permanent 
posts (on receipt 
of formal 
confirmation that 
they are 
interested in the 
role) 

1 x Senior 
Partnership 
Performance 
Analyst 

Filled 
Senior Partnership 
Performance Analyst 

Grade J 

JD updated – 
current post 
holder assimilated 
into new role 

37



 

18 

Current Job title 
Current 
Status 

Proposed Job title Grade 
Change 
Description 

1 x Prevent Co-
ordinator and 
Hate Crime Lead 

Filled 
Prevent Co-ordinator and 
Hate Crime Lead 

Grade K 
 

JD updated – 
current post 
holder assimilated 
into new role 

1 x Community 
Safety Analyst 

Filled Post deleted Grade G 

Post deleted 
Current post 
holder assimilated 
to new 
Intelligence Officer 
post 

1 x Community 
Safety MARAC 
Project 
Coordinator 

Filled 
Business Support and 
MARAC Officer 

Grade G 

JD updated and 
job title changed – 
current post 
holder assimilated 
into new role 

1 x Community 
Safety Project 
Officer - 
Fixed term 
contract 

The current 
post holder 
is being 
redeployed 

Post deleted Grade I Post deleted 

1 x Intelligence 
Officer (CAFT) 

Filled Intelligence Officer Grade G 

Current post 
holder transfer 
from CAFT to CCTV 
and Intelligence 
Team 

NEW ROLE Vacant  Intelligence Officer Grade G 

Job match and 
assimilation to 
current 
Community Safety 
Analyst 

NEW ROLE Vacant 
2 x Business Support 
Officer (Community Safety) 

Grade F 

VACANT 
Open to 
recruitment once 
restructure 
approved 

 

  

38



 

19 

5.3 Final changes to service delivery and operating model 

5.3.1 Increase the number of visible ward-based officers in the community 

We will increase the number of our street-based officers from 6 to 21. This will allow each ward to 
have its own dedicated ward officer. From May 2022, the number of wards in Barnet will increase 
from 21 to 24, however the increase of 3 wards will be absorbed by existing officers. 

Such a large increase to the workforce will require the installation of an appropriate management 
structure to allow issues to be properly investigated and tackled with cases being prepared and 
supervised to ensure that the required outcomes are achieved.  

The Community Safety Team will be split into two defined areas:  

• Community Safety Operations, and 

• CCTV and Intelligence. 

To support the Community Safety Operations Manager there will be three Team Leaders who will 
each lead a team of 6 area-based officers.  

Officers will be assigned their own ward(s) and will be responsible for all areas of reported crime 
taking place there as well as carrying out trade waste audits. In addition to this, officers will be 
working closely with colleagues from other Investigation and Enforcement areas. 

Ward Officer’s names and contact numbers will be displayed on the council’s Community Safety 
Team website pages. 

5.3.2 Provide a uniformed and highly visible, semi-official patrolling presence in our 
communities 

All street-based officers will be expected to wear uniform provided during street-based activities.  
This ensure officers are visible and will gives residents reassurance, as officers carry out patrols in 
their respective wards. 

It is expected that officers will ‘pair up’ to conduct their patrols to remove many lone working 
issues that can arise.  

5.3.3 Obtain and collate intelligence on anti-social behaviour, suspicious conduct and criminal 
activity in order to instigate remedial counter measures. 

Street-based officers will attend and investigate all reported incidents of fly tipping and anti-social 
behaviour.  

These will be logged on the enhanced ECINs case management system where officers will be 
responsible for investigating cases through to identification of perpetrators and prosecution (or 
appropriate sanction). 

5.3.4 Be a point of liaison for Police, Law Enforcement Agencies (Environment Agency, DVLA etc) 
MOPAC, Home Office as well as Council Departments, Partners and Community Groups to 
enable an effective coordinated response. 

They will work with residents, local businesses and Partners such as the police to carry out 
investigations and find solutions to recurring community issues. 

5.3.5 Intelligence Hub officers to specialise in obtaining intelligence from both open and closed 
source data and assist with intelligence gathering for specific criminal investigations 
carried out by CAFT and CST officers.  

They will work with police and other partners including the councils Insight Team to obtain 
intelligence as well as apply for and answer requests for information using Information Sharing 

39



 

20 

Agreements (ISA), Data Protection Act (DPA) requests and sign up to the National Anti-Fraud 
Network (NAFN) Intelligence module. 

5.3.6 Business Support Officers will be responsible for the reconciliation of FPNs issued by 
Enforcement Officers. 

The Business Support Officers will work with Enforcement Officers to monitor the progress of 
issued fines, reconcile incoming payments with the Finance Department and progress cases in 
ECINs case management system with the enforcement officer where fines have not been paid. 

5.4 Changes to Terms and Conditions 

5.4.1 Change to working hours 

Contracts will change to reflect the changes to Street-based officers within the Community Safety 
Operations Team.  All street-based officers will be expected to work the normal 36-hour week but 
adopt a working shift pattern covering: 

• Mondays to Fridays - 8am to 8pm  

• Saturdays - 10am to 5pm  

• Sundays and bank holidays - 10am to 4pm. 

Appropriate remuneration will be included for weekend and bank holiday working in line with the 
Council’s Overtime and Enhanced Payments Policy. 

Normal weekday shift patterns will be 8am to 4pm, 10am to 6pm and 12pm to 8pm. 

Any staff working over the usual 36 hours will be paid over-time as set out in the Council’s 
Overtime and Enhanced Payments Policy. For example, staff will be invited to work overtime at 
special community events.  

5.4.2 On call rota for Team Leaders and Managers 

Contracts for Team Leaders and Managers will be updated to include Out of Hours ‘on Call’ rota 
basis.  Team Leaders will receive an additional fee of £1500 per annum added to their normal 
salary. 

Assistant Director of Counter Fraud, Community Safety & Protection and the Head of Community 
Safety, Enforcement CCTV and Intelligence will also be required to be on the Out of Hours ‘on Call’ 
rota. There will not be any additional remuneration attached to these duties as it falls within the 
remit of the job description. 

6 Decision Making 

This proposal involves changes to the structure and workforce.  These proposals are sponsored by 
Clair Green, Executive Director of Assurance, and are supported by Declan Khan, Assistant Director 
- Counter Fraud, Community Safety & Protection.  

Following the closure of consultation, the final proposals will require approval for implementation 
from the Constitution and General Purposes Committee on 6th January 2022. 

7 Additional Support 

We recognise that it is imperative employees are given support during this time.  Additional 
support is available through: 

40

https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies
https://barnetcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/BWResources/HR%20Policies/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies%2FOvertime%20and%20Enhanced%20Payments%20Policy%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FBWResources%2FHR%20Policies


 

21 

• The Council’s Employee Assistance Programme: Access to free 24-hour telephone 
counselling and information services at any time of the day or night: Tel: 0800 716 017; 
Textphone: 0845 600 5499; Online: www.employeecare.com. 

• HR advice: Where required the HR team can provide some onsite advice, via Vandana 
Mahan (vandana.mahan@barnet.gov.uk)  

8 Appendices 

Appendix 1 - Final set of FAQs 

Appendix 2 - Updated rota 

Appendix 3 - Final proposed service structure 

Appendix 4 - New Job Descriptions - final 

41

http://www.employeecare.com/
mailto:vandana.mahan@barnet.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Employee Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Reason:  Restructure of Community Safety Team 
 
[This document remains live with information being added at each critical milestone] 

 

Project Owner:      Declan Khan  

Date process started: 1 November 2021 

Date process ended: TBC 

 

This EqIA is being undertaken because it 
is: 

 

 
 outlined within the equality scheme     

relevance assessment table  
 part of a project proposal submission to the 

programme management board 
a result of organisation change 
 other – please specify:  

 

 
EqIA Contents 
 

1 Introduction 
 

2. Any Anticipated Equalities Issues at each milestone and identified mitigation  
 

3. Monitoring Summary 
 

4. Project Milestone Outcomes, Analysis and Actions 
 
 
  

43



2 
 

1. Introduction  
 
This assessment arises out of proposals to restructure the Community Safety Team.   
Consultation with staff opened on 3 November 2021 and closes on 3 December 2021. 
 
The aim of the Community Safety Restructure is to add substantive capacity to enforcement 
as well as putting in place a management structure which supports the effective delivery of 
Community Safety activity across the borough, in view of the changes in structure and 
establishment as the Team move from Environment to Assurance on a substantive basis. 
 
The intention of this assessment is to evaluate the impact of this change from the 
perspective of Equality, Diversity and Inclusion within Community Safety and across the 
council. 

 
1.1 Aims and objectives of the Community Safety Restructure 
 

As noted above the aims of the Community Safety Structure are: - 
 

• To bring together the Community Safety Team under Assurance on a substantive 
basis 

 

• To provide a strengthened and established enforcement team able to respond to 
ongoing challenges including Covid-19 enforcement and other activities. 

 

• Establishing a management structure which ensures effective management and 
co-ordination of activities across a co-ordinated Community Safety Team and the 
wider council. 

 
1.2 Description of the critical milestones 
 

 
1 Opening of Consultation with Staff 

 
2 Closing of Consultation with Staff 

 
3 Decision to proceed with the new Community Safety Team structure 

 
 

 
  

44



3 
 

1.3 Key Stakeholders  
 

 

• Staff directly impacted by these proposals 
 

• Staff in the wider Assurance Directorate 
 

• The Council workforce 
 

• Partners in the law enforcement and health sectors who work with Community 
Safety to provide community protection, support and prevention services. 

 
2. Any Anticipated Equalities Issues at each milestone and identified mitigation  
 

2.1 Opening of Consultation with Staff 
 
No equality issues are anticipated with the staff impacted with the restructure. 
 
A copy of the restructure document has been shared with staff on the opening of 
consultation and a draft copy was shared with the trade unions in advance of opening 
consultation. 
 
We are not aware of any reasonable adjustments or requirement for particular 
arrangements arising out of protected characteristics under the Equality Act. 

 

2.2 Closure of Consultation with Staff 
 
Completed on 9 December 2021 
 

2.3 Confirmation of Decision 
 
A decision will be made on 6 January 2021 at the Constitution and General Purposes 
Committee 
 

 
  

45



4 
 

3. Monitoring Summary 
 

3.1 Table 1- Employee EqIA Profile of the Project (this profile is in accordance with the 
requirements of the Equality Act 2010 and the Council will collect this information so far as 
we hold it) 
 

Gender      

  Community Safety % 
Whole Council 

% 

Row Labels    

Female 14.8% 58.7% 

Male 81.5% 40.4% 

Unknown 3.7% 0.9% 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

    

Age Range      

  Community Safety % Whole Council % 

Row Labels    

 3.7% 1.6% 

18-21 7.4% 1.0% 

22-29 11.1% 11.3% 

30-39 22.2% 21.7% 

40-49 14.8% 21.0% 

50-64 40.2% 39.1% 

65-74  4.1% 

75+  0.2% 

Under 18  0.2% 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

    

Ethnic Origin      
  Community Safety % Whole Council % 

Row Labels    

BAME 37.0% 31.3% 

NOT KNOWN 11.1% 16.8% 

WHITE 51.9% 51.9% 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

    

 
 

    
  

46



5 
 

Disabled      

  Community Safety % Whole Council % 

Row Labels    

No  75.3% 

Not Known 94.8% 20.0% 

Yes 3.7% 5.3% 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

    

 
 

    

Sexual Orientation      

  Community Safety % Whole Council % 

Row Labels    

NOT KNOWN 11.1% 14.4% 

BISEXUAL  0.8% 

GAY MAN  0.8% 

GAY WOMAN/ LESBIAN  1.1% 

HETEROSEXUAL 88.9% 68.1% 

PREFER NOT TO SAY  14.7% 

OTHER  0.2% 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

   

 
 

    

Religion  
   

  Community Safety % Whole Council % 

Row Labels    

NOT KNOWN 29.6% 12.3% 

AGNOSTIC 3.7% 3.00% 

ATHEIST 3.7% 4.4% 

BUDDHIST  0.4% 

CHRISTIAN 33.3% 40.2% 

HINDU  4.4% 

HUMANIST  0.2% 

JAIN  0.3% 

JEWISH  2.3% 

MUSLIM 18.5% 5.1% 

NO FORM RETURNED  0.2% 

NO RELIGION  13.6% 

NO RESPONSE ON FAITH  2.8% 

OTHER FAITH 3.7% 2.8% 

PREFER NOT TO SAY  7.6% 

SIKH 7.4% 0.4% 

47



6 
 

Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 

 
 

   

  
 

    

 
Civil Status 

 

    

    Whole Council Whole Council % 

Row Labels      

CIVIL PARTNER  18 1.00% 

COHAB  130 7.19% 

DIVORCED  78 4.31% 

MARRIED  557 30.81% 

PREFER NOT TO SAY  90 4.98% 

SEPERATED  32 1.77% 

SINGLE  727 40.21% 

UNKNOWN  165 9.13% 

WIDOW  9 0.50% 

WIDOWER  2 0.11% 

Grand Total  1808 100.00% 

 
 

    

 
 

    

Main Carer for Child or Young Person with 
Disability   

   Whole Council Whole Council % 

Row Labels      

Not known  1086 60.07% 

No  686 37.94% 

Prefer Not to Say  5 0.28% 

Yes  31 1.71% 

Grand Total  1808 100.00% 

 
 

    

 
 

    

Main Carer for Adult      

   Whole Council Whole Council % 

Row Labels      

Not known  1092 60.40% 

No  690 38.16% 

Prefer not to say  5 0.28% 

Yes  21 1.16% 

Grand Total  1808 100.00% 

 
 

    

  
 

    

48



7 
 

 
Foster Carer 

 

    

   Whole Council Whole Council % 

Row Labels      

Not known  1103 61.01% 

No  701 38.77% 

Prefer not to say  2 0.11% 

Yes  2 0.11% 

Grand Total  1808 100.00% 

 
Milestone 2 and 3 will be updated once the restructure has been completed. 
 
 
 
  

49



8 
 

1. How are the equality strands affected? Please detail the positive/negative or neutral effect 
on each equality strand, and any mitigating action you have taken / required.  Please include 
any relevant data and source.  If you do not have relevant data please explain why and when 
you will capture the data.  

 

Notes: 
 
The analysis behind this Equality Impact Assessment is based the EHRC guidance, which states 
that patterns of variances of greater than +/-3% should be investigated further and individual 
variances greater than +/-5% should be investigated further. 
 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

1. Age No 

 

 

Positive    

Negative  

Neutral     

Explanation of impact: 

The Community Safety Team broadly follows the trend of the council in the exception of the fact 
that Community Safety Team has fewer staff in the 40-49 bracket.   No adverse or positive 
equality impact is anticipated upon this age group, although it does indicate a need to reflect on 
career progression given those in the 40-49 would be typically progressing in to middle 
management based on a normal career path. 

 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

2. Disability No Positive    

Negative  

Neutral          

Explanation of impact: 

No impact.  Declared disability in Community Safety tracks slightly lower against corporate figures 
but this is a very small sample size 

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

3. Gender 
reassignment 

No Positive    

Negative  

Neutral   

 

Explanation of impact: 

No impact 

50



9 
 

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

N/A 

 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

4. Pregnancy and 
maternity 

No Positive     

Negative  

Neutral     

Explanation of impact: 

Barnet will ensure any pregnant staff involved in this restructure are fully consulted and will make 
appropriate adjustments where needed. 

 

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

5. Race / Ethnicity No Positive    

Negative  

Neutral    

Explanation of impact: 

Barnet Council have an ethnically diverse workforce with 31% of staff who have disclosed their 
ethnicity coming from a BAME background.   In Community Safety this figure is higher at 37%.  In 
this restructure we will ensure that all staff receive fair and equal treatment and if a staff member 
needs additional support relating to ethnicity such as where English is not their first language, that 
this support will be provided.    
 
Recruitment to roles will follow Barnet’s Recruitment and Selection procedures and we will also 
seek to reflect on the recent Black Lives Matter movement in terms of ensuring diversity on 
selection panels where this is practical. 
 
Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

 
 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

6. Religion or 
belief 

No Positive    

Negative  

Neutral    X 

Explanation of impact: 

51



10 
 

No impact.   The Community Safety Team has a higher proportion of Muslim staff compared to 
the corporate profile but this fact is not going to directly impact on this restructure. 

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

N/A 

 
 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

7. Gender / sex  No. Positive    

Negative  

Neutral    X 

Explanation of impact: 

No impact.   Community Safety is a predominantly male workforce however no particular equality 
impacts are identified as having an impact upon this staff group from a positive or negative 
perspective.  

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

8. Sexual 
orientation 

No. Positive    

Negative  

Neutral     

Explanation of impact: 

The Community Safety workforce is very small so drawing conclusions based around this area 
would not feel appropriate and there are no particular conclusions to be drawn in any case. 

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

N/A 

 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

9. Marital Status No. Positive    

Negative  

Neutral     

Explanation of impact: 

No impact 

 
Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

 
N/A 
 

Equality Strand Affected? Explain how affected 

52



11 
 

10. Other key 
groups? 

 
Carers  
 
 

No 

 

 

No 

 

 

 

Please assess Young, Parent and Adult carer. 
 

Not recorded but could have an impact on staff groups. 
Positive    

Negative  x 

Neutral     

 

Explanation of impact: 

Staff with parental or caring responsibilities may be negatively impacted due to requirement to 
work at the weekend as well as changes in shift patterns.  

Indicate any action planned or taken to mitigate negative impact? 

We have considered staff feedback and reduced the frequency of street-based officers working at 
the weekend from 4 to 2 officers on either a Saturday or Sunday.  By reducing the number of 
officers from 4 to 2 street-based officers at the weekend we are still able to provide an increased 
service but reduced the impact on family life. 

We envisage this will mean street-based officers will work on either a Saturday or Sunday 
approximately every 4 weeks. 

Street-based officers will also be able to ‘swop’ shifts with colleagues if they are unable to work on 
an allocated day. 

In addition, we will also change the non-working days to allow for officers to have a consecutive 
weekend - for example, if you are on the rota on a Saturday - your non-working days will be 
Sunday and Monday, if you are on the rota for a Sunday - your non-working days will be Friday 
and Saturday. 

 

 
3.2 Evidence  
 
3.2.1 List below available data and research that will be used to determine impact on 

different equality groups 
 

 
HR data provided from transactional HR 
 
Staff/Trade Union/Stakeholder feedback 
 

 
 
3.2.2 Evidence gaps 
 

53



12 
 

 
There are no evidence gaps 
 

 
 

3.2.3 Solution, please explain how you will fill any evidence gaps? 
 

See 3.2.2.  No solution required as no gaps identified 
 

 
4. Project Milestone Outcomes, Analysis and Actions 
 

4.1 Summary of the outcomes at each milestone  
 
 
4.1.1 Milestone 1 - Consultation Period 
 

Ensure that all staff have access to the key information enabling them to make decisions in 
respect of their position within the restructure. 

 
4.1.2 Milestone 2 - Closure of Consultation Period 
 

 
4.1.3 Milestone 3 – Publishing the Decision 

 

  

Ensure that all staff have access to the key information enabling them to make decisions in 
respect of their position within the restructure as a result of the consultation process.  

To be completed. 

54



Summary

The new electoral arrangements for Barnet Council will come into effect at the Local 
Government elections on 5th May 2022.  Barnet will continue to have 63 councillors (the 
same as at present) but there will be an increase in the number of wards, from 21 to 24, 
with 15 three-councillor and 9 two-councillor wards. 

This report includes the final proposals from the Returning Officer for new polling districts 
and their respective polling places to serve at local elections within the new wards. 

Constitution and General Purposes 
Committee

6 January 2022 

Title 
Final proposals for new Polling Districts 
and Polling Places 

Report of John Hooton - Returning Officer for Barnet

Wards All

Status Public

Urgent No

Key Yes

Enclosures 

Appendix 1 - Borough wide summary map of polling 
arrangement proposals 
Appendix 2 - List of proposed polling places
Appendices 3 - 26 - Ward specific final polling 
arrangement proposals for May 2022 
 Appendix 27 - Representations received during Public 
Consultation 
Appendix 28 – Equalities Impact Assessment 

Officer Contact Details 

John Bailey, Head of Electoral Services  
020 8359 3008 - john.bailey@barnet.gov.uk 

Emily Bowler, Head of Assurance & Business Development 
020 8359 4463 - emily.bowler@barnet.gov.uk 

55

AGENDA ITEM 8



 

2 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Committee approves the Returning Officer’s proposed polling 
arrangements from May 2022, detailed within appendices 1-26. 

 
 

1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) completed a 

statutory review of the London Borough of Barnet’s electoral arrangements in 
January 2020.  The LGBCE’s final recommendations mean that: 
 Barnet will continue to have 63 councillors 
 There will be an increase in the number of wards from 21 to 24 
 Councillors will be elected to 15 three-councillor and 9 two-councillor wards 

across the borough 
 The boundaries of all wards will change, none will stay wholly the same. 
 

 
  

56



 

3 

1.1 Following the outcome of the Local Government Boundary Commission for England 
(LGBCE) statutory review, extensive changes are required to the current polling 
district boundaries and to polling place locations throughout the borough. By law, the 
new ward boundaries (served by the new polling districts and polling places) come 
into effect at the local government elections on 5 May 2022.  The Register of Electors 
must be re-published under the new wards ahead of the election (so that poll cards 
can be issued to electors within their new wards and relevant new polling districts).   
 

1.2 In order to comply with the requirements of the Representation of the People Act 
1983 sections 18A-18E (as amended by section 17 of the Electoral Registration and 
Administration Act 2013), and to effectively prepare new polling arrangements as will 
be necessary due to the Electoral Review of Barnet (detailed in 1.1), the Head of 
Electoral Services, working on behalf of Barnet’s Returning Officer has reviewed and 
created proposals for all polling districts and polling places in the borough.  
 

1.3 Following the implications of the LGBCE review outlined in 1.1 above and to allow for 
the conduct of legally compliant elections in the future, electors within the new wards 
will need to be assigned to new polling districts that are wholly contained within and 
coterminous with the new wards. Each of the new polling districts will need to be 
served by polling places (and polling stations) that meet, so far as is practicable, the 
requirements for in-person voting, as laid out by the Electoral Commission.  
 

1.4 The Constitution and General Purposes Committee terms of reference include: 
‘responsibility for overseeing the Council’s governance arrangements including 
Electoral Services, including elections and electoral registration performance; and 
polling places and polling district boundaries.’ 

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
2.1 Following the publication of the LGBCE’s Electoral Review of Barnet (as detailed in 

1.1 above), widespread changes must be made across Barnet’s polling districts and 
polling places. 
 

2.2 Electoral Services have completed assessment visits to every potential polling place 
that was identified or suggested as an alternative or additional venue to existing 
polling places through the Cross-Party Reference Group meetings. 
 

2.3 When assessing the suitability of the polling venue, council officers have followed the 
guiding principles as agreed at the Cross-Party Reference group meetings: 

 
 To ensure that all electors within each ward are within as reasonable and 

equitable distance of their polling venue as is practicable (whilst taking into 
account the operating capacity and accessibility, particularly for those with 
disabilities, of individual venues) 
 

 To minimise the use of schools - seeking to use practical alternative arrangements 
for electors where these are available  

 
 To eliminate so far as possible the use of temporary, portable offices (which offer 

poor accessibility, poor facilities and can only serve very small numbers of 
electors at a time) – to eliminate excessive costs and highly problematic logistical 
issues 

57



 

4 

 
2.4 A proposal detailing polling districts and their designated polling places was designed 

for all 24 wards (see Appendices 1-26), which took into account polling place 
suitability and utilised analysis of direct-line distance and road network distance for 
all electors to identified potential polling places. 
 

2.5 The formal consultation on the initial proposals ran from 11 October until 19 
November 2021 inviting representations from a range of stakeholders. 
 

2.6 All representations received during the consultation period (see Appendix 27) have 
been reviewed by the Electoral Services officers and Returning Officer and 
considered as part of the final proposals of polling district and polling places. 
 

2.7 These final polling arrangements propose: 
 A total of 96 polling districts - each with its own designated polling place 
 An expected reduction in polling stations from 156 to 1511 
 A reduction in number of schools venues used from 31 to 152 
 A reduction in number of portable offices used from 11 to 0 

 
2.8 Eliminating the use of portable offices will help to alleviate some polling costs, as on 

average they are more than twice as expensive to use as permanent buildings and 
require additional staffing and equipment costs to manage the planning, delivery and 
set-up of these offices and the facilities needed to support their use. 
 

2.9 In addition, the elimination of portable offices as polling venues improves access to 
in-person voting in each of these locations for persons with certain disabilities or 
restricted mobility.  
 

 
3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 
3.1 In accordance with the provisions of Statutory Instrument Order 2020 No. 1106: The 

London Borough of Barnet (Electoral Changes) Order, the new wards within 
Barnet are legislated to come into effect from 5 May 2022. There is no lawful 
alternative to introducing new polling districts and polling places to serve these new 
wards at the elections on 5 May 2022. 
 

3.2 To adopt the initial proposals without consideration to the representations received 
during the statutory public consultation could lead to an appeal being lodged by 
electors to the Electoral Commission. This in turn could have a negative effect on the 
perceived fairness and transparency of future elections within Barnet. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Following approval of the Returning Officer’s final proposals by the Constitution and 
General Purposes Committee, Barnet’s Register of Electors will be re-published in 

 
1 Numbers of polling stations can change dependent on actual number of registered electors and postal voters at a 
specific election 

2 The Children’s Centre which is located on the site of the Hyde School in West Hendon is also proposed 

58



 

5 

full to introduce new roll numbers for all electors based upon their new wards and 
polling districts. 
 

4.2 The list of designated polling places and maps detailing the new polling districts will 
be published on the website. 
 

4.3 The approved polling arrangements will be used for the conduct of all future statutory 
elections within the borough. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  

 
5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

 
5.1.1 The Barnet Plan sets out the four priorities for the borough. The plan focuses on the 

key outcomes we are seeking to achieve and how we will work to achieve those 
outcomes. This work supports the council’s priority of Clean, Safe and Well Run. 
 

5.1.2 Ensuring that the designation of polling districts and polling places give all electors 
reasonable and accessible facilities for voting (so far as is practicable within the 
circumstances), ensures that the democratic rights of all registered electors within 
Barnet are protected. 
 

5.1.3 In addition, by enabling electors to vote as easily and accessibly as possible, their 
views are expressed, and elected Councillors ensure that they are taken into account 
and acted upon throughout all aspects of the council’s priorities, values, activities and 
outcomes.  
   

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The Council is responsible for the costs of conducting local (council) elections, 
including, when held, local by elections that elect the Borough’s own councillors.  At 
all other elections all ‘actual and necessary’ costs are recovered by the Returning 
Officer from the relevant governing body for that election (e.g. central government 
for national UK elections or referendums and the GLA for the London Mayoral and 
Greater London Assembly elections).   
 

5.2.2 The impact of the changes to polling places across the borough brought in by this 
statutory activity are considered to be cost neutral. Although there will be an 
expected increase costs for hiring polling places instead of using schools, these 
costs will be more than offset by eliminating the use of portable offices for polling. 
 

5.2.3 The costs of delivering borough-wide elections continues to rise year on year and 
additional provision has been made within the Council’s budget setting process to 
allocate increase funds (placed in a dedicated reserve each year) to meet the cost 
of the next local government elections in 2026. 

 
5.3 Social Value  
 
5.3.1 As stated at 5.1 

 
 

59



6 

5.4 Legal and Constitutional References 

5.4.1 Following the Local Government Boundary Commission for England’s ‘Electoral 
Review’ of Barnet, a draft order was laid before Parliament in July 2020. This has 
subsequently become Statutory Instrument 2020 No. 1106 ‘The London Borough of 
Barnet (Electoral Changes) Order 2020’ made 12 October 2020. This legislates that 
the new wards within Barnet come into effect from 5 May 2022. 

5.4.2 In carrying out any review of polling arrangements, the local authority must comply 
with the steps set out in Schedule A1 Representation of the People Act 1983.  The 
local authority is required to:  
 publish a notice of the holding of a review
 consult the (Acting) Returning Officer for every parliamentary constituency

which is wholly or partly in its area
 publish all representations made by the Returning Officer within 30 days of

receipt by posting a copy of them at the local authority’s office and in at least
one conspicuous place in their area and, if the authority maintains a website,
by placing a copy on the authority's website (regulation 3 of the Review of
Polling Districts and Polling Places (Parliamentary Elections) Regulations
2006) 

 seek representations from such persons as it thinks have particular expertise
in relation to access to premises or facilities for persons who have different 
forms of disability.  Such persons must have an opportunity to make 
representations and to comment on the representations made by the (Acting) 
Returning Officer(s). 

 on completion of a review, give reasons for its decisions and, in accordance
with regulation 4 of the Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 
(Parliamentary Elections) Regulations 2006, publish: 

o all correspondence sent to an (Acting) Returning Officer in
connection with the review 

o all correspondence sent to any person whom the authority
thinks has particular expertise in relation to access to premises 
or facilities for persons who have different forms of disability 

o all representations made by any person in connection with the
review 

o the minutes of any meeting held by the council to consider any
revision to the designation of polling districts or polling places 
within its area as a result of the review 

o details of the designation of polling districts and polling places
within the local authority area as a result of the review 

o details of the places where the results of the review have been
published 

5.4.3 Provision is contained within Section 18E RPA 1983 which provides that no election 
is to be questioned by reason of any informality relative to polling districts and polling 
places. Representations can be made to the Electoral Commission which may make 
directions to alter polling districts and/or polling places.  

5.4.4 The Constitution and General Purposes Committee terms of reference (Article 7) 
includes to “have responsibility for overseeing the Council’s governance 
arrangements including: Electoral Services including: elections and electoral 
registration performance; and polling places and polling district boundaries”. 

60



 

7 

5.5 Risk Management 
 
5.5.1 By conducting this review of Polling Districts and Polling Places, the Council mitigates 

the risk that electors find the arrangements for polling within the Borough to be 
hampered by poor accessibility or the provision of sub-standard facilities (given the 
practicable circumstances prevailing in each polling district). 

 
5.6 Equalities and Diversity                                                                                                                

Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in making 
their decisions. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties to 
secure a particular outcome. The equalities impact will be revisited on each of the 
proposals as they are developed. Consideration of the duties should precede the 
decision. It is important that the committee has regard to the statutory grounds in the 
light of all available material such as consultation responses. The statutory grounds 
of the public sector equality duty are found at section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 
and are as follows: 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need 
to: 
(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 
prohibited by or under this Act;  
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
(c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons 
who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it 
involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to: 
(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic 
(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it 
(c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionately low 
The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from 
the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account 
of disabled persons’ disabilities. 
Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share 
a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 
(a) Tackle prejudice, and (b) Promote understanding. 
Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would 
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. 
The relevant protected characteristics are: 
• Age 
• Disability 
• Gender reassignment 
• Pregnancy and maternity 
• Race 
• Religion or belief 
• Sex 

61



8 

• Sexual orientation
• Marriage and Civil partnership

5.6.1 To review any potential equalities implications, the Head of Electoral Services 
completed an Equalities Impact Assessment on the final proposals (Appendix 28). 

5.6.2 The legislation governing this review requires that representations are sought from 
persons who are considered to have an expertise in access to locations for persons 
with different forms of disability.  In order to fulfil this requirement, the Head of Service 
for Health, Safety and Wellbeing at the London Borough of Barnet will be given 
oversight of the proposed polling district and polling places arrangements across the 
borough.  

5.6.3 The delivery of this electoral process is strictly governed by legislation, which is in 
itself designed to provide for reasonable access for all electors – including persons 
who have different forms of disability (so far as is reasonably practicable in the 
circumstances). In addition to providing polling stations that are as accessible as 
practicable in the circumstances, Part 2 Representation of People Act 2000 provides 
that all voters have the right to request the use of postal or proxy voting 
arrangements. 

5.6.4 Effective processes and activities with regards to registering residents on the 
electoral roll, in compliance with all relevant electoral legislation, ensures that all 
eligible individuals can choose to exercise their democratic rights in the manner in 
which they choose (as allowed by law). 

5.7 Corporate Parenting 

5.7.1 Not applicable 

5.8 Consultation and Engagement 

5.8.1 A statutory public consultation ran from 11 October to 19 November 2021. 

5.8.2 The public notice was published and displayed at Hendon Town Hall and posted on 
the Council’s website.  In addition, the consultation was promoted widely through 
methods usually used for such purposes in Barnet, including website, news articles 
and social media.   

5.8.3 In addition, invitations to submit a representation were sent to: 
 All 63 Councillors of the London Borough of Barnet
 The three Members or Parliament that represent the constituencies

within the London Borough of Barnet
 The London Assembly Member for the Barnet and Camden

constituency
 All venues put forward for use as a polling place in the proposals
 Known election agents from recent elections within the borough

5.8.4 A total of 42 representations were received during the period of public consultation, 
of which 33 were resolved following the changes made to the Returning Officer’s 
initial proposals. Of the remaining nine representations, two were considered to not 
need a resolution (the representation did not ask for a relevant change to the 

62



9 

proposals) and only seven were unable to be resolved within the final proposals that 
are detailed within the attached appendices. 

5.8.5 All representations received during the consultation period were reviewed by the 
Head of Electoral Services and the Returning Officer and contributed to the final 
proposals for polling district and polling places. All representations received are 
included at Appendix 27. 

5.9 Insight 

5.9.1 None 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Local Government Boundary Commission for England Review of LB Barnet ward 
boundaries 

Constitution and General Purposes Committee Thursday 16 January 2020, Agenda Item 
8, LGBCE New electoral arrangements for Barnet Council Final Recommendations  

Constitution and General Purposes Committee Monday 12 October 2020, Agenda Item 
8,  Implementing the final recommendations from the Local Government Boundary 
Commission for England (LGBCE) 

Constitution and General Purposes Committee Monday 22 June 2021, Agenda Item 7, 
Implementing the new warding arrangements for the London Borough of Barnet - Project 
Update 

Constitution and General Purposes Committee Monday 4 October 2021, Agenda Item 
8, Draft Proposals for New Polling Districts and Polling Places 

63



This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights
2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted
to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the
data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

London Borough of Barnet
Polling District and Polling Place Proposals for May 2022

Constitution and General Purposes Committee - Jan. 2022

65



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
Polling Districts and Polling Places Review 

List of Proposed Polling Places – CGP Jan ‘22 
 

 
PD 

Code Ward Polling Place Post Code 
*Qty 

Polling 
Stations 

1 BVA Barnet Vale St Mark's Church Hall EN5 5HY 3 

2 BVB Barnet Vale Lyonsdown Main Hall EN5 1JB 2 

3 BVC Barnet Vale Grasvenor Avenue School  EN5 2BY 1 

4 BVD Barnet Vale Discovery Hall (Scout Hall) EN5 1DR 2 

5 BPA Brunswick Park Monkfrith Primary School N14 5NG 1 

6 BPB Brunswick Park Osidge Primary School N14 5HD 2 

7 BPC Brunswick Park CCI London Church Hall N14 5DU 2 

8 BPD Brunswick Park St Paul's CofE Primary  N11 1NQ 1 

9 BOA Burnt Oak The Eversfield Centre NW7 2AE 2 

10 BOB Burnt Oak Edgware Methodist Church Hall HA8 9AW 1 

11 BOC Burnt Oak Watling Community Centre HA8 0TR 2 

12 BOD Burnt Oak Our Lady of the Annunciation Church Hall HA8 0HQ 2 

13 BOE Burnt Oak St Alphage Church Hall HA8 0DF 1 

14 CHA Childs Hill Holy Cross and St Michael's Cathedral Hall NW11 8HL 2 

15 CHB Childs Hill Harris Room, Trinity Church NW11 8NH 2 

16 CHC Childs Hill Childs Hill Library NW2 2QE 2 

17 CHD Childs Hill St Agnes Centre NW2 1HR 2 

18 CNA Colindale North St Augustine's Church Hall NW9 5SY 2 

19 CNB Colindale North Grahame Park Community Centre NW9 7QE  1 

20 CNC Colindale North Colindale Library NW9 4BR 2 

21 CSA Colindale South Colindale Office, Barnet Council NW9 4EW 2 

22 CSB Colindale South The Pulse Community Flat NW9 5XW 2 

23 CSC Colindale South The Hyde United Reform Church Hall NW9 6RR 2 

24 CWA Cricklewood Hendon Leisure Centre NW2 1XQ 1 

25 CWB Cricklewood Carey Hall NW2 1PY 2 

26 CWC Cricklewood Allotments Trading Hut NW2 6QL 1 

27 CWD Cricklewood Kent Hall Community Hall NW2 2RL 1 

28 EBA East Barnet New Barnet Leisure Centre and Library EN4 9BS 2 

29 EBB East Barnet New Barnet Community Centre  EN4 9PF 2 

30 EBC East Barnet Brookside Methodist Church Hall EN4 8JB 2 

31 EBD East Barnet Vernon Hall EN4 8QG 1 

32 EFA East Finchley The Green Man Community Centre N2 9BA 1 

33 EFB East Finchley St Mary's Catholic Church N2 8HG 2 

34 EFC East Finchley Bishop Douglass RC High School N2 0SQ 1 

35 EFD East Finchley Finchley Youth Centre N2 9ED 2 

36 EGA Edgware One Stonegrove Community Centre HA8 8BN 2 

37 EGB Edgware John Keble Church Hall HA8 9NT 3 

38 EGC Edgware Edgware Parish Hall HA8 7LG 2 

39 EWA Edgwarebury Broadfields School HA8 8JP 2 

40 EWB Edgwarebury Fairway Primary School NW7 3HS 1 

41 EWC Edgwarebury Courtland School NW7 3BG 1 

42 EWD Edgwarebury St Andrew's Church Hall HA8 8TZ 1 

43 EWE Edgwarebury Scout Hut, Edgware United Synagogue HA8 8TL 1 

44 FCA Finchley Church End Function Room at Hendon Crematorium NW7 1NB 1 

45 FCB Finchley Church End St Margaret's United Reformed Church N3 1BD 1 

46 FCC Finchley Church End St Philip The Apostle Parish Centre N3 3RJ 1 

47 FCD Finchley Church End Avenue House N3 3QE 1 67



48 FCE Finchley Church End Finchley Baptist Church Hall N3 3QL 2 

49 FCF Finchley Church End Finchley United Synagogue N3 3DU 1 

50 FBA Friern Barnet Manor Drive Methodist Church Hall N20 0DZ 1 

51 FBB Friern Barnet Scout and Guide Hall N11 3HX 1 

52 FBC Friern Barnet St John's Church Parish Centre N11 3EQ 2 

53 FBD Friern Barnet Freehold Community Centre  N10 2EY 1 

54 FBE Friern Barnet St Peter Le Poer Church Hall N10 1AE 1 

55 GSA Garden Suburb Brookland Infants School NW11 6EJ  2 

56 GSB Garden Suburb Fellowship House  NW11 6YD 1 

57 GSC Garden Suburb St Jude’s Church Hall NW11 7AH 2 

58 GGA Golders Green Marquees on Tennis Court - Princes Park NW11 0HY 2 

59 GGB Golders Green St Edward the Confessor Church Hall  NW11 7NH  1 

60 GGC Golders Green Menorah Primary School NW11 9SP 2 

61 HEA Hendon Sunnyfields School NW4 4JH 2 

62 HEB Hendon Church House NW4 4JT 1 

63 HEC Hendon Hendon Baptist Church NW4 1DJ 2 

64 HED Hendon Our Lady of Dolours - Church Hall NW4 4BA 1 

65 HEE Hendon Hendon School  NW4 2AS 2 

66 HBA High Barnet Hadley Memorial Hall EN5 4PU 1 

67 HBB High Barnet Chipping Barnet Library EN5 4QT 2 

68 HBC High Barnet Arkley Club EN5 3EY 1 

69 HBD High Barnet St Peter's Church Hall EN5 3FJ 1 

70 HBE High Barnet The Pavilion, Brickfield Lane EN5 3LD 1 

71 MHA Mill Hill St Paul’s Church Hall NW7 1QU 2 

72 MHB Mill Hill Hartley Hall NW7 2JA 2 

73 MHC Mill Hill Mill Hill East Church NW7 2BU 2 

74 MHD Mill Hill Canada Villa Young People's Centre NW7 2BU 2 

75 TWA Totteridge & Woodside Totteridge Village Hall N20 8AH 1 

76 TWB Totteridge & Woodside Totteridge Tennis Club N20 8QL 1 

77 TWC Totteridge & Woodside Woodside Park Social Club N12 7JG 2 

78 TWD Totteridge & Woodside Wiseman Linden Hall N12 8RZ 1 

79 TWE Totteridge & Woodside Millbrook Park Primary School NW7 1JF 1 

80 UHA Underhill St Stephens Church Hall EN5 2UR 2 

81 UHB Underhill Underhill Baptist Church Hall EN5 2EA 1 

82 UHC Underhill Hope Corner Community Centre EN5 2DY 2 

83 WFA West Finchley Trinity Church Centre N12 7NN  2 

84 WFB West Finchley Essex Hall N3 1ND 2 

85 WFC West Finchley St Paul's Centre N3 2PU 2 

86 WHA West Hendon Children's Centre at The Hyde School  NW9 7EY 1 

87 WHB West Hendon West Hendon Baptist Church Hall  NW9 6BA 2 

88 WHC West Hendon Barnet Multi-Cultural Community Centre NW4 3TA 2 

89 WHD West Hendon Parkfield Primary School NW4 3PJ 1 

90 WSA Whetstone St Mary Magdalen Parish Centre N20 9AE 1 

91 WSB Whetstone All Saints Church Hall N20 9JU 2 

92 WSC Whetstone St John's Primary School, Swan Lane N20 0PL 1 

93 WSD Whetstone St Katerine's Greek Orthodox Church Hall N20 0NL 1 

94 WOA Woodhouse St Barnabas Church Hall N12 8QJ 2 

95 WOB Woodhouse Scout Hall Grove Road N12 9EA 2 

96 WOC Woodhouse Wingate and Finchley Football Club N12 0PD 2 

          * Number of polling stations is set by RO ahead of each election and is determined by number of in-person voters
  

68



Barnet Vale Ward -
Proposal for May 2022

4 x Proposed Polling
Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- St Mark's Church Hall
  (5384 allocated electors)
- Grasvenor Primary School
  (809 allocated electors)
- Lyonsdown Hall 
  (3555 allocated electors)
- Discovery Hall
  (2538 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted to use
this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that
provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

69



This page is intentionally left blank



Brunswick Park Ward - 
Proposal for May 2022
4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Monkfrith Primary School
  (2014 allocated electors)
- Osidge Primary School
  (3636 allocated electors)
- CCI London Church Hall
  (3694 allocated electors)
- St Paul's CofE Primary
  (2458 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are
permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to
copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

71



This page is intentionally left blank



Burnt Oak Ward (May 2022)

5 x Proposed Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Edgware Methodist Church Hall
  (2004 allocated electors)
- Watling Community Centre
  (3290 allocated electors)
- Eversfield Centre
  (3356 allocated electors)
- Our Lady of Annunciation Chuch Hall
  (3069 allocated electors)
- St Alphage Church Hall
  (1946 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted
to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with,
the organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

73



This page is intentionally left blank



Childs Hill Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022
4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Holy Cross and St Michael's Cathedral Hall
  (2657 allocated electors)
- Harris Room, Trinity Church
  (3097 allocated electors)
- Childs Hill Library
  (3929 allocated electors)
- St Agnes Centre
  (3090 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

75



This page is intentionally left blank



Colindale North Ward - 
Proposal for May 2022
3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- St Augustine's Church Hall
  (3016 allocated electors)
- Grahame Park Community Centre
  (1702 allocated electors)
- Colindale Library
  (2705 allocated electors)

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

77



This page is intentionally left blank



Colindale South Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022
3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Barnet Council's Colindale Offices
  (3851 allocated electors)
- Pulse Community Flat
  (2917 allocated electors)
- Hyde United Reform Church Hall
  (4444 allocated electors)

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted to use
this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that
provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

79



This page is intentionally left blank



Cricklewood Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Hendon Leisure Centre
  (1376 allocated electors)
- Carey Hall
  (2867 allocated electors)
- Trading Hut - Needham Terrace
  (634 allocated electors)
- Kent Hall Comunity Hall
  (1401 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted
to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

81



This page is intentionally left blank



East Barnet Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- New Barnet Leisure Centre and Library
  (3342 allocated electors)
- New Barnet Community Centre
  (3153 allocated electors)
- Brookside Methodist Church Hall
  (3707 allocated electors)
- Vernon Hall
  (2393 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

83



This page is intentionally left blank



East Finchley Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Green Man Community Centre
  (2409 allocated electors)
- St Mary's Catholic Church Hall
  (2651 allocated electors)
- Bishop Douglass RC High School
  (2253 allocated electors)
- Finchley Youth Centre
  (4036 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted to
use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation
that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence,
distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

85



This page is intentionally left blank



Edgware Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022
3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- One Stonegrove Community Centre
  (3525 allocated electors)
- Edgware Parish Hall
  (4195 allocated electors)
- John Keble Church Hall
  (5945 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted
to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-
licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

87



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Edgwarebury Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 20225 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Broadfields School
  (2687 allocated electors)
- St Andrew's Church Hall
  (2052 allocated electors)
- Scout Hut Edgware Synagogue
  (1652 allocated electors)
- Fairway Primary School
  (947 allocated electors)
- Courtland Primary School
  (1118 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021
OS 100071674. You are permitted to use this
data solely to enable you to respond to, or
interact with, the organisation that provided
you with the data. You are not permitted to
copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Finchley Church End Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

6 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- St Margaret's United Reformed Church
  (2411 allocated electors)
- Function Room at Hendon Crematorium
  (2144 allocated electors)
- St Phillip the Apostle Parish Centre
  (2470 allocated electors)
- Avenue House
  (2025 allocated electors)
- Finchley Baptist Church Hall
  (2671 allocated electors)
- Finchley Synagogue
  (1597 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You are permitted
to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are not permitted to copy,
sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

Avenue
House

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Friern Barnet Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

5 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Manor Drive Methodist Church Hall
  (2391 allocated electors)
- Scout and Guide Hall
  (2365 allocated electors)
- St John's Church Parish Centre
  (3906 allocated electors)
- Freehold Community Centre
  (2434 allocated electors)
- St Peter Le Poer Church Hall
  (1828 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely to
enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any
of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

93



This page is intentionally left blank



Garden Suburb Ward -
Polling Proposals for May 2022

3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Brookland Infant School
  (3220 allocated electors)
- Fellowship House
  (1808 allocated electors)
- St Jude's Church Hall
  (4231 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

95



This page is intentionally left blank



Golders Green Ward -
Polling Proposal for May 2022

3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Marquees on Tennis Court - Princes Park
  (3361 allocated electors)
- St Edward the Confessor Church Hall
  (1770 allocated electors)
- Menorah Primary School
  (3811 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided
you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence,
distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

97



This page is intentionally left blank



Hendon Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

5 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Sunnyfields Primary School
  (2573 allocated electors)
- Church House
  (1573 allocated electors)
- Hendon Baptist Church Hall
  (3750 allocated electors)
- Our Lady of Doloures Church Hall
  (2299 allocated electors)
- Hendon School
  (3646 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You
are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or
interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data. You
are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this
data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

99



This page is intentionally left blank



High Barnet Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

5 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- The Pavilion, Brickfield Lane
  (734 allocated electors)
- St Peter's Church Hall
  (1293 allocated electors)
- The Arkley CLub
  (1955 allocated electors)
- Chipping Barnet Library
  (4029 allocated electors)
- Hadley Memorial Hall
  (775 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

101



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Mill Hill Ward - 
Polling Proposal for May 2022

4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- St Paul's Church Hall
  (2738 allocated electors)
- Hartley Hall
  (2976 allocated electors)
- Mill Hill East Church Hall
  (3158 allocated electors)
- Canada Villa Youth Centre
  (3855 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

Canada
Villa
Young
People's
Centre

103



This page is intentionally left blank



Totteridge and Woodside Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

5 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- Totteridge Village Hall
  (955 allocated electors)
- Totteridge Tennis Club
  (1777 allocated electors)
- Woodside Park Social Club
  (3749 allocated electors)
- Wiseman Linden Hall
  (1725 allocated electors)
- Millbrook Park Primary School
  (1997 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you
with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence,
distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Underhill Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:

- St Stephen's Church Hall
  (3486 allocated electors)
- Hope Corner Community Centre
  (3945 allocated electors)
- Underhill Baptist Church Hall
  (1543 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS
100071674. You are permitted to use this data solely
to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the
organisation that provided you with the data. You are
not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell
any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



West Finchley Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Trinity Church Centre
  (3691 allocated electors)
- Essex Hall
  (4871 allocated electors)
- St Paul's Centre
  (4420 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided
you with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence,
distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

109



This page is intentionally left blank



West Hendon Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- Children's Centre at Hyde School
  (2086 allocated electors)
- West Hendon Baptist Church Hall
  (3174 allocated electors)
- Barnet Multi-Cultural Community Centre
  (3763 allocated electors)
- Parkfield Primary School
  (2183 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You
are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to,
or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of
this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

111



This page is intentionally left blank



Whetstone Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022
4 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- St Mary Magdalen Parish Centre
  (1941 allocated electors)
- All Saints Church Hall
  (3184 allocated electors)
- St Katerine's Greek Orthodox Church Hall
  (1019 allocated electors)
- St John's Primary School
  (1802 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674. You
are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to,
or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any
of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

113



This page is intentionally left blank



Woodhouse Ward - 
Polling Proposals for May 2022

3 x Polling Districts

Proposed Polling Places:
- St Barnabas Church Hall
  (3097 allocated electors)
- Scout Hall, Grove Road
  (3840 allocated electors)
- Wingate and Finchley Football Club
  (2689 allocated electors)

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 OS 100071674.
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to
respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you
with the data. You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence,
distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form.

PDPP_FINAL Proposal 
CGP Cttee Jan 2022

115



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix: 27 
Polling Districts and Polling Places Review 

Public Consultation Oct/Nov 2021 - Representations Received 
 

Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

Barnet Vale 

I would like to register my strong objection to the 
proposed provision of polling stations in the new 
Barnet Vale ward, where I expect to be living shortly: 
why on earth are there no polling stations in the south 
of this ward, ie the East Barnet area? Is it because 
there is a Labour councillor in this region? In my view, 
this is arguably an example of gerrymandering, 
providing polling stations in the more traditionally 
Tory loyal areas, and removing them from the part of 
the ward that might return Labour representatives.   

Theresa 
Musgrove 

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
Discovery Hall (Scout Hall), which 
is located on the southern edge 
of the new ward, has been 
included in the final proposals.  

Barnet Vale 

The proposed southern polling district has the polling 
place a long way from residents at the south end. If 
found to be suitable, we would support use of the 
scout hut in Stevenson Close as a polling place with 
adjustments to polling district boundaries, even 
though it is at the edge of the ward. A width 
restriction makes crossing of Netherlands Road 
relatively safe. 

Labour Group 
submission 

Brunswick 
Park 

I wish to continue voting at the LCCI Polling Station in 
Osidge Lane please. 

Jen Newton 
(resident) 

We are continuing to use CCI 
Church as a polling venue in 
Brunswick Park ward. 

Brunswick 
Park 

I have received an update on the proposed polling 
stations for Barnet and in particular Brunswick Ward 
i.e. Osidge School. 
 
As a parent who has a child who goes to Osidge School 
I find the disruption to the school i.e. it closing for the 
day hugely negative to my child’s education. This 
school already has what I believe are more inset days 
then most schools.  
 
Are you sure you can’t rent out the Church next to 
Asda. I know it is technically Enfield. If you have to do 
it then why don’t you inconvenience the primary 
school children at an Outstanding school that have 
less Inset days i.e. Ashmole Primary. Technically it is 
more central as well.  

Somer Zeynel 
(resident) 

This representation is not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
 
Unfortunately, no alternative 
venues have been proposed or 
identified that would mean that 
Osidge Primary school could stop 
being used as a polling venue. 
Electoral Services work closely 
with all schools that are used for 
polling to try and minimise 
disruption, but unfortunately 
Osidge Primary is a school that 
usually decides that it needs to 
close on polling days (for 
safeguarding reasons) due to the 
nature of the school grounds and 
buildings.  

Brunswick 
Park 

Various polling places are under consideration for the 
southern polling district. A portable office in the car 
park on Brunswick Park Road would not be a good 
solution. The Pavilion at New Southgate Recreation 
Ground in Oakleigh Road South and St Paul’s School in 
The Avenue are both acceptable locations. We suggest 
that the Family Resource Centre in Coppies Grove 
should be considered too – there is adequate parking 
space nearby. The Ryhope Road/Dale Green 
Road/Pymmes Green Road area should be included in 
the southern polling district rather than electors 
having to travel to Osidge School. 

Labour Group 
submission 

This representation is resolved 
by changes to the RO’s initial 
proposals. 
We have been unable to secure a 
visit to review the Family 
Resource Centre in Coppies Grove 
(*I don't believe it is controlled by 
the council?). Based upon 
feedback from several councillors 
on the 'Working Group' 
(reviewing the work on the new 
polling arrangements), the 117



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 
proposal is now to move the 
polling place from the New 
Southgate Recreation Ground 
Pavilion to the nursery at St Paul's 
Primary School. This polling 
district has also been amended to 
include Ryhope Road, Dale Green 
Road and Pymmes Green.   

Burnt Oak 

During the boundary changes I made a number of 
suggestions for places.  
Here are my thoughts 
 
New places 
Watling park school 
Islamic Centre Edgware 
Edgware Central Mosque 
Burnt Oak leisure centre 
 
Easier places to get to in burnt oak A that aren't 
obscure and in the far corner 
Deansbrook Road shops 
Woodcroft Primary School 

Ben Samuel 

These suggested locations have 
been considered, but it is felt that 
the proposal put forward utilises 
good polling locations and serves 
the electors of Burnt Oak ward 
well. 

Burnt Oak 

The new Burnt Oak ward has, at its northern most 
boundary, absorbed an entire polling district from the 
old Hale ward and part of a polling district from the 
old Edgware ward. Consequently, it is entirely 
reasonable to submit that the new Burnt Oak ward 
ought to consist of at least 5 polling districts. 
 
The proposals retain 4 polling districts in the new 
Burnt Oak ward, however in order to do so it has 
resulted in the northern most polling district being 
awkwardly formed. The residents of the Heming Road 
/ Fairfield Crescent area, as well as those in Symphony 
Close and Fortune Avenue, are considerably 
disconnected from the proposed polling place of the 
Watling Community Centre. Due to the old London 
Transport railway line, these residents can only access 
the polling place by walking along Deansbrook road, 
which, due to its narrowness and incline, ought to be 
considered inaccessible for those of reduced mobility. 
 
For the reasons stated above it is submitted that the 
Heming Road / Fairfield Crescent area, the Symphony 
Close / Fortune Avenue area as well as the North Road 
Estate area, ought to be an entirely separate polling 
district, with its polling place at the North Road 
Community Centre. The boundary between this new 
polling district and the polling district with St Alphage 
Church as its polling place should arise north of 
Barnfield Road, such that the area from Barnfield 
Road down to The Greenway would constitute a 
discrete polling district. 

Cllr Ammar 
Naqvi 

This representation is resolved 
by changes to the RO’s initial 
proposals. 
 
The final proposals for Burnt Oak 
include an additional polling place 
located at Edgware Methodist 
Church Hall. This means that 
Burnt Oak will have five polling 
districts and that electors in 
Heming Road/Fairfield Avenue/ 
Fairfield Crescent will not need to 
go to Watling Community Centre 
to vote. 

Childs Hill No representations received   N/A 

118



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 
Colindale 

North No representations received   N/A 

Colindale 
South 

Residents on the south side of Colindale Avenue and 
culs-de-sac off it are a long way from the Hyde United 
Reform Church Hall and much closer to the Pulse 
Community Flat. Please consider moving the polling 
district boundary from Colindale Avenue to Colindeep 
Lane/Sheaveshill Avenue. If the capacity of the Pulse 
Community Flat is an issue and all available space that 
is suitable is already allocated, please consider a 
partial extension of the northern polling district to 
include as much as possible of the area described 
above. Capacity should be a temporary problem 
because the new Jain centre in Colindale Avenue is 
expected to become available. 

Labour Group 
submission 

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals (as far as is 
practicable at present). 
 
The polling district served by the 
Pulse Community Flat has been 
extended to include as many 
electors as possible. 
Unfortunately, the location is 
only suitable for use as a single 
polling station.  
Initial contact has been made 
with the Jain Centre, so it is 
hoped that it can be introduced 
as a polling venue once 
construction has completed on 
the building. 

The tremendous increase of residents within the 
Colindale ward area necessitated the division of 
Colindale into two separate wards. It is therefore 
evident that Colindale is an area of sustained 
population growth, and the polling district that serve 
this electoral area must be alert to this reality. As 
such, it is submitted that the polling district for which 
the Hyde United Reform Church is the polling place is 
unwieldy in its size and density. More specifically, it is 
entirely unintelligible why the roads south of Colindale 
Avenue are in this polling district even though they are 
entirely geographically disconnected from the 
Colindeep Lane network of roads. Any resident living 
south of Colindale Avenue would need to take an 
unreasonably lengthy detour in order to vote, whereas 
their neighbours on the other side of Colindale Avenue 
have a comparatively short journey to the Pulse 
Community Flat. 
 
The simplest remedy to this problem is to shift the 
polling district boundary such that all residents either 
side of Colindale Avenue are in the same polling 
district. However, the population growth of Colindale 
will unquestionably necessitate the need the create a 
separate polling district for the area south of 
Aerodrome Road – this can either be done now 
voluntarily or in the future of necessity. 

Cllr Ammar 
Naqvi 

Cricklewood 

I have real concerns about the polling stations for the 
new Cricklewood Ward. There needs to be an 
additional polling statjon towards Prayle Grove and 
the Whitefield Estate. Additionally, residents of Hadley 
Grove should use the Carey Hall Polling Station. 

Cllr Anne 
Clarke 

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
Hendon Leisure Centre, which is 
located in the north end of the 
new ward, is included as a polling 
venue in the final proposals.  
Hadley Grove included within the 
polling district to use Carey Hall 
as polling station. 

I would like to suggest the Tesco car park, the Better 
sports hall or the sales suite of Brent Cross Town for 
the North of Cricklewood Ward. 
It is requested that Handley Grove votes at Carey Hall 
rather than Kent Hall – it is closer and avoids the need 
to cross the busy Cricklewood Lane. The northern part 
of the ward is a long way from Carey Hall and the 
population is expected to increase substantially. 

Labour Group 
submission 

119



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 
Please consider providing a polling place in that area 
e.g. in the Better Sports Hall or Brent Cross Town 
Visitor Pavilion. 

East Barnet 

Dear Sir/Madam, as I understand it the current polling 
station for East Barnet ward which is usually held in 
Trent School is now proposed to be moved to New 
Barnet Recreation Centre next to New Barnet ward 
polling station. My family and I live in the Bevan Road 
area which is very convenient to the current Polling 
Station at Trent School, Chalk Lane, not only is it 
convenient for us but for most of the residents who 
live nearby, it is sited on a flat area there is plenty of 
parking and it is near the Cockfosters Piccadilly Line 
tube station, which suits those who work in the city 
and west end to be able to vote on the way to work or 
on the way home from work. 
 
The population of this area does have a lot of elderly 
people living in it so having to go to New Barnet to 
vote becomes a problem as it does for those with 
young families too, apart from having to use a vehicle 
to get there what’s the parking like, particularly in bad 
weather? My experience is it’s not very good! 
 
More importantly what’s the logic in having two 
polling stations for two different areas in the same 
place, is it just to save money, or plain laziness? In 
these times it’s hard enough to get people to vote and 
in my view and many others agree that it will see a 
drop off in people willing to go to the proposed new 
venue to cast their vote. Along with the change in 
boundaries It could possibly cause a change in voting 
patterns between Tory and Labour wards, which could 
seriously affect the precarious balance of local 
democracy and that’s SERIOUS STUFF! It’s plain 
tinkering with a perfectly good system. 

Robin 
Shirfield 

(resident) 

This representation is not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
 
It is considered that the polling 
place proposed for New Barnet 
Leisure Centre and Library, whilst 
not central within its polling 
district, does offer excellent 
voting facilities. The venue is 
easily accessible, served by public 
transport and also offers its own 
on-site parking. Using this 
location also avoids the need for 
Trent School to close on polling 
days.  

East Finchley No representations received   N/A 

Edgware No representations received   N/A 

Edgwarebury 

I am writing to object to the polling station in this area 
being relocated. At the moment it is in the scout hut 
which is Central to the local vicinity and if it is moved 
to St. Andrews Church Hall potentially this will mean 
many local residents are unable   to travel the distance 
and therefore will be disenfranchised. 
 
I hope this move will be reconsidered. 

Sue Layton 
(resident) 

 
 
These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
Changes made to polling district 
proposals within Edgwarebury 
and the Scout Hut at Edgware 
United Synagogue has been 
proposed to be used for electors 
living within the area and roads 
mentioned in these 
representations.. 
 
 

Edgwarebury 

The current proposal to move my local Polling Station 
in Edgwarebury to St. Andrew's Church would be 
remote and inaccessible to a significant subset of my 
Polling District's electorate, particularly those (myself 
included) living East of Kenilworth Road. The Edgware 
United Synagogue Scout Hut on Parnell Close is much 
more easily accessible, centrally located in this Polling 
District and is already familiar to the electorate. I 

Rishikesh 
Chakraborty 

(resident) 

120



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 
would support keeping my Polling Station at the Scout 
Hut. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
Changes made to polling district 
proposals within Edgwarebury 
and the Scout Hut at Edgware 
United Synagogue has been 
proposed to be used for electors 
living within the area abnd roads 
mentioned in these 
representations.. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Edgwarebury 

I live in the Edgwarebury ward, and I'm really 
concerned at the possibility of the polling station 
moving from the Scout Hut at Edgware United 
Synagogue. 
 
Several people I know in Fairmead Crescent, Luther 
Close and Bellamy Close will struggle to make the 
longer journey to St Andrew's Church. This is especially 
important as so many residents are Jewish and already 
know Edgware United Synagogue really well. 
 
I really hope that you amend these proposals, and 
keep a polling place at Edgware United 
Synagogue/the Scout Hut. 

Amy Tapper 
(resident) 

Edgwarebury 

I am a resident in the new Edgwarebury ward, and 
want to make the following submission on the review 
of polling districts and polling places: 
 
Moving the polling station from the Scout Hut near 
Edgware United Synagogue to St Andrew's Church 
risks confusing and alienating a number of residents 
living on Parnell Close, Fairmead Crescent, Harcourt 
Avenue and other surrounding roads. 
The Scout Hut is recognisable to many residents who 
live nearby and have voted there for years. St 
Andrew's isn't as recognisable or well-known to as 
many residents. 
 
I really urge you to keep a polling station at the Scout 
Hut. 

Jonathan 
Tapper 

(resident) 

Edgwarebury 

I wish to confirm that I wish for the polling station to 
remain at the Scout Hut Parnell Close. This is an 
extremely convenient venue, known to all the locals 
and serves the purpose of a polling station very 
efficiently.   

Debjani 
Mukherjee  
(resident) 

Edgwarebury 

I have strong concern that the relocation of my local 
Polling Station in Edgwarebury to St. Andrew's Church 
would be remote, inconvenient and inaccessible to 
myself and a significant proportion of my Polling 
District's electorate, particularly those (me included) 
living East of Kenilworth Road. The Edgware United 
Synagogue Scout Hut on Parnell Close is much more 
easily accessible, more centrally located in this Polling 
District and is already familiar to the electorate. I 
support keeping my Polling Station at the Scout Hut. 

Nikhilesh 
Chakraborty 

(resident) 

121



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

Edgwarebury 

As a resident in the new Edgwarebury ward, I would 
like to oppose the proposal to move the Scout Hut 
polling station in Edgware United Synagogue to St 
Andrew’s Church. 
 
There are many Jewish residents who live in Fairmead 
Crescent and Harcourt Avenue, and Edgware United is 
much more familiar to many of these residents, and 
also nearer to more of them. 
 
St Andrew's is further away and less well-known to 
much of the community. I would urge you to please 
keep the polling station at the Scout Hut, Edgware 
United Synagogue. 

Josh Tapper 
(resident) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
Changes made to polling district 
proposals within Edgwarebury 
and the Scout Hut at Edgware 
United Synagogue has been 
proposed to be used for electors 
living within the area and roads 
mentioned in these 
representations.. 

Edgwarebury 

The proposed polling place at St Andrew’s Church Hall 
(wrongly referenced as St Stephen’s in the key of the 
map) in Lynford Gardens is remote and inconvenient 
for electors to the east of Kenilworth Road. The 
existing polling place at the United Synagogue Scout 
Hut in Parnell Close is better located. The cost of 
security has not prevented other Jewish premises from 
being proposed as polling places for future use. 

Labour Group 
submission 

Edgwarebury 

The proposed south eastern polling district of the new 
Edgwarebury ward is the one element of the drafts 
proposals regarding which I have had the most 
negative public feedback. Accessibility of St Andrew’s 
Church for residents in eastern most part of this 
proposed polling district is highly questionable. For 
residents who live near Stoneyfield’s Park the distance 
to St Andrew’s Church is almost a mile – to situate the 
polling place at this location would be tantamount to 
disenfranchising these electors. 
 
A solution is quite clear, and benefits from 
considerable local support: retain the polling place at 
the Scout Hut outside Edgware United Synagogue. This 
venue is well known to all those residents who used to 
reside in the Hale ward polling district of HRE and it is 
precisely central to the proposed new polling district. 
Since there will be a change of polling venue for some 
electors whichever location was selected, there would 
have been a need to publicise the new polling place to 
all residents of the new polling district, so no elector is 
worse off for opting for the Scout Hut as the polling 
place for this polling district, and yet all electors are 
greatly benefited from having a central location that is 
not especially disconnected from any part of the 
proposed polling district. 

Cllr Ammar 
Naqvi 

122



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

Finchley 
Church End 

I am delighted that you come to an agreement to 
move the voting on the 5th May 2022 from Chalgrove 
School to Kinloss 
 
It will be most convenient for the local people in the 
FMD area to access and vote without too much 
inconvenience and also free the school from closing on 
election day 
 
I want to thank you again for your understanding and 
support to make this possible 

Cllr Eva 
Greenspan 

This representation is resolved 
by changes to the RO’s initial 
proposals. 
 
Finchley United Synagogue offers 
excellent facilities for voting and 
can serve the electors in the 
proposed polling district well.  

Friern Barnet No representations received   N/A 

Garden 
Suburb 

In Garden Suburb, It’s completely unacceptable to 
remove polling stations from Norrice Lea and 
Widdecombe Way without replacement. How are 
residents expected to walk all the way to St Judes and 
Brooklands school respectively? We must reinstate at 
least one of those polling stations. Why can we not put 
a mobile one back on Widdecombe Way, or use the 
pavilion in Lyttleton Playing Fields? 
 
What is the rationale for the proposals in these two 
locations? 

Cllr Rohit 
Grover 

This representation is not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
Following polling station risk 
assessments related to the Covid 
restrictions in place at the time, 
of the London Mayoral and GLA 
elections on 6 May 2021, the two 
portable offices previously used 
at Norrice Lea and at 
Widdecombe Way were not used. 
Affected electors were instead 
allocated to St Jude's and 
Brookland Primary School 
respectively. Turnout across 
these polling stations was very 
healthy and is supported by some 
of the highest rates of postal 
voting across the borough. It is 
considered that the advantages 
to all affected electors, in having 
excellent polling places, housed 
within permanent buildings, 
outweigh the disadvantage that 
may be caused to a much smaller 
number of electors from the 
increased distance to their polling 
location. 

Garden 
Suburb 

Please stop using schools. My son’s school (Brookland 
Hill) keeps closing to be used as a polling place. Our 
kids have suffered enough disruption to their 
education over the past two years.   
 
Find alternatives—I’m sure you could rent a church 
hall, use a library, etc. If you don’t have the budget, 
that’s because you keep making below inflation 
increases to our council tax bill. It’s a rich borough.  

John Maris 
(resident) 

 
These representations are not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
 
Unfortunately, no alternative 
venues have been proposed or 
identified that would mean that 
Brookland Primary school could 

123



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

Garden 
Suburb 

I’m not sure if this is a correct Representation, 
however I write because I’d like to say that I’m not OK 
with Brookland Infant or Brookland Junior schools in 
Garden Suburb area being used as polling stations. 
Not only do the kids need every day of school they can 
get, but it’s hard as working parents to make these 
days work. 
 
The school has closed many times over the years for 
polling stations and it strikes me as inappropriate 
when there are other public venues which are empty in 
the day and may be more suited. 

Romy Miller 
(resident) 

stop being used as a polling 
venue. Electoral Services work 
closely with all schools that are 
used for polling to try and 
minimise disruption, but 
unfortunately Brookland Primary 
is a school that does need to 
close on polling days (for 
safeguarding reasons) due to the 
nature of the school grounds and 
buildings.  

Golders 
Green No representations received   N/A 

Hendon 

I live in cheyne walk, nw4, and have just heard that 
hamonean primary school will no longer be a polling 
station. 
 
It will be infinitely easier for me to vote if my polling 
station was at hendon school rather than our lady of 
doloures church hall.  The latter takes much longer to 
get to due to traffic from cheyne walk, and i can vote 
at hendon school as a courseof my day to day 
routine... im afraid if i had to get to the church hall, i 
probably wouldnt have time to vote. 

Rachel Baigel 
(resident) 

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
The polling district around 
Hendon School has been 
modified to take in Cheyne Walk, 
Renters Avenue, Denehurst 
Gardens and Beaufort Gardens. 
The electors in these roads are 
allocated to Hendon School in the 
final proposals. 

Hendon 

I understand that there is currently a review of all 
polling stations taking place in Barnet. Hasmonean 
Prep School, my current polling station, will no longer 
be a polling station. The recommendation is for mine 
to now be Our Lady of Doloures Church Hall (opposite 
the town hall. There is very little parking close to this 
site and quite a distance from where we live. My 
neighbours and I would prefer to go to Hendon School. 

Adrian Jacobs 
(resident) 

Hendon 

As a current West Hendon councillor and a candidate 
for Hendon ward in 2022, I would like to make a 
representation in relation to the following roads which 
currently sit in West Hendon and will be moving to 
Hendon ward: 
• Cheyne Walk 
• Renters Avenue 
• Denehurst Gardens 
• Beaufort Gardens 
 
These roads are closely connected to the Shirehall 
estate, and historically voted at Hasmonean Primary 
School. 
 
I have spoken to several residents from these streets, 
and they have unanimously told me that they would 
prefer to vote in Hendon School rather than Our Lady 
of Doloures Church hall as is currently proposed. 

Cllr Alex 
Prager 

124



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

High Barnet 

Can I suggest you recognise the steepness of the hill 
when choosing a polling station in High Barnet High 
St. There are many elderly or disabled voters who will 
be extremely disadvantaged by having to climb the hill 
and walk the distance to the library. A more equitable 
site would be Barnet College or St John’s church. 
Although still at the top of the hill, they are closer in 
distance to those with the steepest climb. 

Holly Kai-
Weiss 

(resident) 

The library is considered a good 
polling station with excellent 
access and facilities for electors.  

High Barnet 

The proposed polling places at St Peter’s Church Hall 
and The Arkley Club with the polling district boundary 
cutting across Barnet Road would result in many 
electors, some less nimble than others, needing to 
cross a relatively high-speed section of Barnet Road to 
vote and again to return home without any controlled 
pedestrian crossing. This would be an unusual 
circumstance for drivers to encounter at that location 
and very dangerous. It would probably deter a 
significant number of residents from voting. It would 
be much better to have the polling district boundary 
along the centre of Barnet Road so that no voter 
would need to cross the road on foot. The Arkley Club 
could cater for electors on the north side of Barnet 
Road and, instead of St Peter’s, Whitings Hill School 
should be considered as the polling place for electors 
south of Barnet Road. The Brickfield Lane polling place 
could and should have its area extended eastwards. It 
is located near traffic lights where crossing is much 
safer. 

Labour Group 
submission 

This representation is not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
 
An assessment of Whitings Hill 
School has shown that it would 
almost certainly have to fully 
close on polling days.  
Based on retaining the initial 
proposed polling places, it then 
becomes difficult to justify 
running the polling district 
boundary along the centre of 
Barnet Road – as a great number 
of electors would need to pass a 
polling station located much 
closer to their home in order to 
visit their allocated polling place. 
The RO’s final proposal in High 
Barnet therefore remains as was 
published for public consultation. 

 We would like the polling station at Mill Hill Library.  Adam Morley 
(resident) 

This representation is not 
resolved by the RO’s final 
proposal. 
It is considered that Hartley Hall 
offers better facilities for electors 
in this polling district.  

Totteridge & 
Woodside 

I appreciate the update as we have been in touch with 
colleagues from Barnet for quite a long time now over 
this issue. For us, this is positive news. 

Niamh Arnull 
- 

Headteacher, 
Finchley 

Catholic High 
School 

This representation is resolved 
by changes to the RO’s initial 
proposals. 
The new proposals allow suitable 
polling arrangements for electors, 
without using Finchley Catholic 
High School.  

Underhill No representations received   N/A 

West Finchley No representations received   N/A 

West Hendon 

In West Hendon, the proposal to place the Polling 
Station in St. Matthias' Church would mean the vast 
majority of this Polling District's electorate would have 
to cross a busy road (the A5) making accessibility more 
difficult. There are 3 possible locations that are more 
centrally located in this Polling District; the Hyde 
School, Hendon Magistrates Court and the Parkside 
View Children's Nursery. I propose that either one of 
these three alternatives or parts of some or all three 

Rishikesh 
Chakraborty 

 
 
 
 
These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 

125



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 
locations are used as a Polling Station instead of St. 
Matthias' Church 

Based upon these 
representations, the polling place 
proposed for location at St 
Matthias Church has been moved 
to the Children's Centre at Hyde 
School. Based on arrangements 
used for the London Mayoral and 
GLA elections on 6 May 2021, it is 
anticipated that Hyde School will 
be able to remain open on polling 
days as the Children's Centre is 
situated in a separate building to 
the main school. This means that 
the polling place is closer to the 
majority of electors within this 
polling district than it would have 
been if left at St Matthias Church. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

West Hendon 

We live in the Welsh Harp Village and we are surprised  
that you are proposing to put our polling station, East 
of the A5 at St Matthias Church which appears to be at 
the other end of our polling district. We also believe 
the parts of the polling district, east of  the A5 has a 
smaller population compared to the Welsh Harp or 
west of the A5, hence it is odd that rather than have a 
polling station at an area which is equidistant to all 
residents, the current proposal is to expect a 
significant majority of residents to walk for nearly 30 
minutes just to vote. 
As we are both over 80, we will find it hard to go vote 
at this polling station as we are quite frail and old 
school and have always voted in person. Many friends 
of ours of the same age group feel the same way as 
we do, especially from a safety perspective with the 
traffic on the A5. We also believe residents with 
children and disabilities might find it hard going to 
vote in St Matthias Church from the Welsh Harp. 
We propose the polling station is brought back to the 
Hyde School, or the Magistrates Court or Parkside 
View Children's Nursery.  

Dagma 
Perera 

(resident) 

West Hendon 

I live in the Welsh Harp Village with my family and we 
are dismayed at the proposed location of our new 
polling station. I did a journey planner and it indicated 
that I will need to walk for just under 30 minutes to go 
vote. I also struggle to understand why the polling 
station is not placed somewhere more central in the 
polling district like the Hyde School or Parkside 
Children's nursery.  
 
I am fairly active in the local community and my 
reservations are shared by many of my neighbours as 
they think the proposed new polling station is 
unsuitable and does not take into account that people 
with children or elderly folks might struggle to cross 
the A5 just to vote. 
 
I  humbly request the polling station is returned to the 
Hyde School where I have always voted and it is 
accessible to everyone or to Parkside Children's 
nursery. 

Hameed 
Khandahari 
(resident) 

126



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

West Hendon 

I was a councillor for West Hendon for 36 years until 
2018 and have also been Civic Mayor of  Barnet.  
I have reviewed the proposals for polling districts and 
polling stations in West Hendon ward and whilst I 
think most of the proposals are  reasonable, I have 
misgivings about the location of the polling station in 
St Matthias Church for that polling district especially  
as this part, east of the A5 is a new addition to West 
Hendon ward. 
Having dealt with residents in the Welsh Harp in the 
past and met them recently in community groups, it is 
my view that a good number of them especially those 
on the most western part of the Welsh Harp Village 
would  find it difficult to get to St Matthias Church to 
vote. I am particularly referring to elderly residents, 
families with children and residents with disabilities.  
My recollection of that polling district makes me 
believe that a larger proportion of the electorate live 
on the west part of the A5 hence it would be better to 
have the polling station back at the Hyde School or at 
the nursery on West Hendon Playing fields. 
Thank you for considering my proposals.  

Agnes 
Slocombe  

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
Based upon these 
representations, the polling place 
proposed for location at St 
Matthias Church has been moved 
to the Children's Centre at Hyde 
School. Based on arrangements 
used for the London Mayoral and 
GLA elections on 6 May 2021, it is 
anticipated that Hyde School will 
be able to remain open on polling 
days as the Children's Centre is 
situated in a separate building to 
the main school. This means that 
the polling place is closer to the 
majority of electors within this 
polling district than it would have 
been if left at St Matthias Church 

West Hendon 

Most of the electors who are proposed to vote at St 
Matthias Church Hall live on the west side of The 
Hyde, a busy road. Please consider using instead some 
part of The Hyde School, Hendon Magistrates Court or 
West Hendon Pavilion (Parkside View Nursery). 

Labour Group 
submission 

West Hendon 

These proposals are largely acceptable, except for the 
polling place at St Matthias Church Hall, which, whilst 
it is in the new West Hendon ward area, as for as local 
residents know and are concerned is actually in the 
Colindale area. The group of roads known as the 
Welsh Harp Estate will be both physically and 
emotionally distanced from their polling place were St 
Matthias Church Hall chosen as the venue for these 
purposes. It would be far more preferable and 
advisable to situate the polling place on western side 
of the Edgware Road. Whilst I appreciate that efforts 
are being made to avoid using schools wherever 
possible, such a desire does not and cannot out-weight 
the overriding right of local residents to cast their 
vote. Therefore, it is submitted that the Hyde School 
ought to be the polling place for this polling district. 

Cllr Ammar 
Naqvi 

Whetstone 

I object to our polling station moving to  St Katherines' 
Church Hall. 
It's about a 45 minute walk each way from Ridgeview 
Road and  the distance is thus a deterrent to the many 
voters who live in these roads from travelling  to vote. 
There are plenty of alternatives nearer to these roads. 
In the past we've used St John's Church Hall, St Mary 
Magdelan Church, Finchley Catholic School and the 
Jewish School on former Police Station Oakleigh Road. 
There are plenty of venues near here which wouldn't 
effectively disenfranchise us. 

Michael 
Owens 

(resident) 

These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
The new proposals for Whetstone 
now include St John's Primary 
school on Swan Lane. This means 
that the residents of Ridgeview 
Road (and those close by) are no 
longer allocated to St Katerine's 
Church Hall. 

127



Ward Representation Received From RO’s Response 

Whetstone 

The Labour Group is strongly opposed to many 
electors around the High Road, even as far as 
Ridgeview Road and Woodside Lane, having to travel 
to St Katerine’s Greek Orthodox Church Hall in Friern 
Barnet Lane, more than a mile away in some cases 
and the other side of a golf course. Even for residents 
closer to the proposed polling place, St Katerine’s is 
not a good location, sited as it is on a busy and 
relatively fast road with bends and poor sight lines. 
Instead, St John’s School in Swan Lane should be 
considered with a consequential adjustment of polling 
district boundaries such that electors south of 
Totteridge Lane and the western end of Oakleigh Road 
North vote at St John’s and the St James Avenue area 
vote at Oakleigh Community Church Hall in Oakleigh 
Road North. 

Labour Group 
submission 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These representations are 
resolved by changes to the RO’s 
initial proposals. 
 
 
 
The new proposals for Whetstone 
now include St John's Primary 
school on Swan Lane. This means 
that the residents of Ridgeview 
Road (and those close by) are no 
longer allocated to St Katerine's 
Church Hall. 

Whetstone 

The southern most polling district of the new 
Whetstone ward is unacceptably proportioned. 
Residents at is western most edge are essentially the 
entire width of the ward away from their polling place. 
This polling district entirely fails to adhere to the 
Electoral Commission’s guidance on accessibility, as 
well as arbitrarily lumping together two 
geographically distinct neighbourhoods, those being 
the residents living either side of the High Road and 
those living between Friern Barnet Lane and Oakleigh 
Road North. 
 
A solution to this problem would be separate the 
southern most polling district in the current proposals 
so as to create two polling districts, one serving the 
residents around the High Road and the other serving 
the residents of the roads north of Friern Barnet Lane. 
The boundary between these polling districts would 
arise at Myddelton Park, just as it does for the 
northeast polling district in the current proposals. The 
polling place for the later of these polling districts 
would be St Katerine’s Greek Orthodox Church, whilst 
a polling place would need to be identified for the 
former polling district. A possible venue is St John the 
Apostle Church, another is St John’s Primary School. 
Such venues would be far more appropriate for the 
residents of this region of the new Whetstone ward. It 
may even be advisable, where a new polling district to 
be included to serve the southwest of the ward, to 
extend the northern boundary of any such polling 
district up to Totteridge Lane (with the High Road 
acting as its eastern boundary) so as to instil a degree 
of elector balance amongst the various polling districts 
comprising the new Whetstone ward. 

Cllr Ammar 
Naqvi 

Woodhouse No representations received   N/A 

 

128



Appendix 28 
 

Equality Impact Assessment: Statutory Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2021 

The Equality Act 2010 includes a general duty which requires public authorities, in the exercise of their functions, to have due regard to the need to: 

• Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act.  
• Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and people who do not share it. 
• Foster good relations between people who share a relevant protected characteristic and those who do not 

In order to comply with the general duty. Local Authorities must assess the impact on equality of decisions, policies and practices.  These duties do not 
prevent the authority from reducing services where necessary, but they offer a way of developing proposals that consider the impacts on all members of the 
community. 

Authorities which fail to carry out equality impact assessments risk making poor and unfair decisions which may discriminate against particular groups and 
worsen inequality.  

1. Key recommendations: That the Constitution and General Purposes committee approves the Returning Officers proposals for polling places, 
as outlined within the report to committee on 6 January 2022. 

2. Committee name and date: Constitution and General Purposes (CGP) committee – 6 January 2022 

3. Stakeholders: All registered electors; election staff, election candidates and polling agents, official election observers. 

4. Consultation:  Public consultation took place on the Returning Officer’s initial polling place proposals (as approved by CGP committee on 4 
October 2021) between 11 October 2021 and 19 November 2021. The Returning Officer’s final proposals were then sent to the London 
Borough of Barnet’s ‘Head of Health, Safety and Wellbeing’ for review ahead of CGP committee on 6 January 2022.  

5. Factors to consider in the assessment:  For each of the groups below, an assessment has been made on whether the proposed 
recommendation will have a positive, negative, or neutral impact. Where the impact is negative, a high, medium or low assessment is given. 
The assessment rates the impact of the decision(s) versus the current situation (i.e. disregarding any previous decisions made). 

 High impact – a significant potential impact, risk of exposure, history of complaints, no mitigating measures in place etc. 

 Medium impact –some potential impact exists, some mitigating measures are in place, poor evidence 

 Low impact – almost no relevancy to the process, e.g. an area that is very much legislation led and where the Council has very little discretion 

 

 
 
EQIA completed by: John Bailey – Head of Electoral Services           Date: December 2021 

129



 

 

Protected characteristic/ area of 
interest 

Positive, 
Negative or 

Neutral 
Impact 

High, 
Medium or 

Low 
Impact 

Reason 

Age  Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic  

Disability Positive 
(where 

relevant) 

A positive impact for certain persons with this protected characteristic (where 
specific to a mobility impairment) by the removal of those polling venues that 
previously used a portable office for voting. The portable offices had poor access 
for persons with mobility issues and minimal space provided inside to manoeuvre 
(e.g., for wheelchair users). 

Gender reassignment Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

Pregnancy and maternity Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

Race Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

Religion or belief  Negative 

Low 

(where 
relevant) 

An increased number of the venues used for polling are attached to (or managed 
by) religious organisations. In all cases, actual halls or rooms used as places of 
worship are avoided. In addition, electoral law allows for the Presiding Officer at 
any polling station to take a ballot paper to an elector outside of the venue if they 
are unable or unwilling to enter the premises being used. 

Sex Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

Sexual orientation Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

Marriage and Civil partnership Neutral N/A No changes made to polling provision that affect this characteristic. 

130



 

 

 

Summary 

 
As a result of the final outcomes of the Local Government Boundary Commission for England 
(LGBCE) review of ward boundaries in the London Borough of Barnet, there will be changes to 
the number of wards, the number of Councillors per ward and ward boundaries which will come 
into effect in May 2022.  
 
The ward boundary changes will have an impact on the Councils area based governance 
arrangements (i.e. Area Committees and Residents Forums) as there will be more wards and a 
mixture of two and three Member wards.  
 
Officers developed various options for revised arrangements relating to Residents Forums and 
Area Committees which were discussed with the Local Government Boundary Review Member 
Reference Group.  Feedback was received from the individual political groups on the options.  
The Committee are asked to agree the preferred option for implementation in May 2022.   
 
Subject to Committee approval of the preferred option, officers will draft the required 

Constitution amendments and report these to Council for approval.   

 

Constitution and General Purposes 
Committee 

 
6 January 2022 

Title  

Revised Boundaries and Arrangements 
– Residents Forums and Area 
Committees  

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          None 

Officer Contact Details  
Salar Rida – Senior Governance Officer 
salar.rida@barnet.gov.uk – 020 8359 7113 

131

AGENDA ITEM 9

mailto:salar.rida@barnet.gov.uk


 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee note the report. 

2. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee indicate their preferred 
option for revised arrangements for Residents Forums and Area Committees:  
a) is there a desire for Area Committees to which proportionality does not apply 

and the membership is made up of elected members from that area; and 
b) the preferred option for the geographical areas for the committees. 

3. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee approve the option for 
revised arrangements for Residents Forums and Area Committees and recommend 
to Council in May 2022 that the Constitution be amended to give effect to the 
changes in May 2022.  

4. That the Constitution and General Purposes Committee agree that Residents 
Forums are aligned to the revised Area Committee boundaries from May 2022 and 
continue to operate under the existing membership format consisting of Chair and 
Vice-Chair appointed by Council. 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  
 
1.1 In Barnet, there are currently 21 wards in total and seven wards for each of the 

Parliamentary constituencies for Hendon, Chipping Barnet and Finchley & Golders Green. 
 

132



 
 
1.2 Each of the Barnet Parliamentary constituencies currently include the following wards: 

 

Hendon Chipping Barnet Finchley & Golders Green 

1. Burnt Oak 1. Brunswick Park 1. Childs Hill 

2. Colindale 2. Coppetts 2. Finchley Church End 

3. Edgware 3. East Barnet 3. East Finchley 

4. Mill Hill 4. High Barnet 4. Garden Suburb 

5. Hale 5. Oakleigh 5. Golders Green 

6. Hendon 6. Underhill  6. Woodhouse 

7. West Hendon 7. Totteridge 7. West Finchley  

 
1.3 The key changes from the final recommendations of the Local Government Boundary 

Commission for England (LGBCE) for Barnet are summarised below. The new changes 
mean that there will be an increase in the number of wards in Barnet from 21 to 24.  

 

Existing Arrangements New Arrangements (5 May 2022) 

63 Councillors 63 Councillors 

21 Wards 24 Wards 

3 Councillors/Ward 15 x 3-Councillor Wards and  

9 x 2-Councillor Wards 

  

133



1.4 The number of Councillors per ward for the current and new ward arrangements are: 
 

Existing Ward Arrangements  New Ward Arrangements 

 Ward Councillors   Ward Councillors 

1 Brunswick Park 3  1 Barnet Vale  3 

2 Burnt Oak 3  2 Brunswick Park 3 

3 Childs Hill 3  3 Burnt Oak 3 

4 Colindale 3  4 Childs Hill 3 

5 Coppetts 3  5 Colindale North 2 

6 East Barnet 3  6 Colindale South 3 

7 East Finchley 3  7 Cricklewood 2 

8 Edgware 3  8 East Barnet 3 

9 Finchley Church End 3  9 East Finchley 3 

10 Garden Suburb 3  10 Edgware 3 

11 Golders Green 3  11 Edgwarebury 2 

12 Hale 3  12 Finchley Church End 3 

13 Hendon 3  13 Friern Barnet 3 

14 High Barnet 3  14 Garden Suburb 2 

15 Mill Hill 3  15 Golders Green 2 

16 Oakleigh 3  16 Hendon 3 

17 Totteridge 3  17 High Barnet 2 

18 Underhill 3  18 Mill Hill 3 

19 West Finchley 3  19 Totteridge & Woodside 3 

20 West Hendon 3  20 Underhill 2 

21 Woodhouse 3  21 West Finchley  3 

    22 West Hendon 3 

    23 Whetstone 2 

    24 Woodhouse 2 

       

 Total 63   Total 63 

 
1.5 The implications for the ward arrangements from the LGBCE review means that each ward 

will have new boundaries as of May 2022, as displayed in the map below. 
 

134



 
  
1.6 The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) is currently conducting a review of the 

Parliamentary constituencies. The BCE is required to make a formal final report to the 
Speaker of the House of Commons before 1 July 2023, recommending any changes that 
it believes are appropriate to the distribution, size, shape, name or designation of 
constituencies in England.  

 
1.7 The Member Steering Group requested that consideration was given to aligning the local 

government ward boundary changes with the BCE review of parliamentary 
constituencies. Whilst this may have been a helpful consideration, the timetables for the 
two reviews are not aligned.  Changes to the Barnet Parliamentary constituencies are not 
expected until mid-2023 at the earliest and proposals could change following 
consultation. The initial proposals for the London Region covering Barnet are set out 
below: 

 
 
 
 
 

135



62.  Stanmore and 
Edgware 
 
37.  Hendon and  
Golders Green 
 
38.  High Barnet 
and Mill Hill 
 
29.  Finchley and 
Muswell Hill 
 
61.  Southgate 
and Barnet East  
 

 
 
 
1.8 The timetable for consultation and submission of the final report and recommendations of 

the Parliamentary Boundary review 2023 can be found here: 
https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/2023-review/  

 
1.9 Using the BCE parliamentary constituency proposals presents a number of key issues for 

area based arrangements, as follows:  
 

 Using the proposed constituencies would require a comprehensive revision to the 
existing three areas as there is no congruence between proposed new 
parliamentary constituencies, the borough boundaries and the local government 
wards.  

 If Barnet’s new area committee boundaries link to the new parliamentary 
constituencies, then there will be a gap between the ward boundaries coming into 
effect in May 2022 and the new parliamentary boundaries coming into effect (on a 
date TBC). 

 In the interim period, between May 2022 and the new parliamentary boundaries 
coming into effect (expected 2023) the new ward arrangements are not 
coterminous with the existing parliamentary boundaries in Barnet, as illustrated 
below:  

 

136

https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/2023-review/


 
 
 
1.10 It was therefore agreed by the Member Reference Group that proposals should be 

worked up without reference to the parliamentary review. 
 
1.11 The Member Reference Group considered Area Committee / Residents Forums options 

at their meetings on 13 July 2021 and 14 September 2021. The Group were consulted 
and agreed on the principles for the revision for area-based governance arrangements 
as follows: 
 

 Retain x3 Area Committees and x3 Residents Forums   

 Develop 3 new areas which are broadly congruent with existing Area Committee and 
Residents Forum boundaries  

 Equal number of Wards per Area – 24 new Wards  8 Wards within each Area 
Committee area 

 Equal number of Members per Area: 63/3= 21 Members per Area (in so far as is 
possible) 

 Equal number of Electors per Area (as far as possible) taking into account projected 
growth in electors and population 

 Have regard to the Parliamentary Constituency Boundary Review 
 
1.12 Following consultation and feedback from the Member Reference Group, three options 

were proposed for the new area based governance arrangements for Residents Forums 
and Area Committees. 

 
1.13 The initial proposals are summarised as follows: 
 

 Option 1: 
 

 
East Area West Area South Area 

Number of Cllrs 21 21 21 

Number of Wards 8 8 8 

137



 
 
 Option 2: 
 

 
East Area West Area South Area 

Number of Cllrs 21 22 20 

Number of Wards 8 8 8 

 
 
 Option 3: 
 

 
North 
Area 

West Area East Area 

Number of Cllrs 21 21 21 

Number of Wards 8 8 8 

 
 
1.13 A detailed breakdown for each option including maps is presented in following sections of 

the report: 

 Option 1 sections 1.14 – 1.17  

 Option 2 sections 1.18 – 1.20 

 Option 3 sections 1.21 – 1.25 
 

 Option 1 
 
1.14  Option 1 retains an equal number of councillors per area.  The elector numbers based on 

2020 figures are slightly unbalanced, but are approximately balanced by 2025.  This option 
is broadly consistent with our existing area-based governance arrangements.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

138



 
1.15 Map for option 1: 
 

 
 
1.16 The number of Councillors per Area and per Ward for option 1: 
 

East Area West Area South Area 

High Barnet 2 Edgwarebury 2 Mill Hill 3 

Barnet Vale 3 Edgware 3 Childs Hill 3 

Underhill 2 Burnt Oak 3 East Finchley 3 

East Barnet 3 West Hendon 3 West Finchley 3 

Brunswick Park 3 Hendon 3 Golders Green 2 

Whetstone 2 Cricklewood 2 Woodhouse 2 

Friern Barnet 3 Colindale North 2 Finchley Church End 3 

Totteridge & 
Woodside 

3 Colindale South 3 Garden Suburb 2 

TOTAL: 21 TOTAL: 21 TOTAL: 21 

  

139



 
1.17 The number of electors*1 per Area and per Ward for option 1: 
 

East Area West Area South Area 

Ward  2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 

High Barnet 8,493 9,233  Edgwarebury 7,927 8,769  Mill Hill 11,799 13,018  

Barnet Vale 11,578 12,284  Edgware 12,391 13,743  Childs Hill 11,014 12,581 

Underhill 8,491 9,156  Burnt Oak 11,424 13,447  East Finchley 10,487 11,545  

East Barnet 11,818 13,007  West 
Hendon 

9,028 12,506 West Finchley 11,650 13,004 

Brunswick 
Park 

11,029 13,096 Hendon 11,786 13,576  Golders Green 7,818 8,396  

Whetstone 7,370 8,543 Cricklewood 5,177 7,903  Woodhouse 8,716 9,493 

Friern Barnet 11,564 12,795 Colindale 
North 

6,254 9,055  Finchley 
Church End 

12,036 13,523 

Totteridge & 
Woodside 

9,481 11,910  Colindale 
South 

8,814 13,360  Garden 
Suburb 

8,863 9,231  

TOTAL: 79,824 90,024 TOTAL: 72,801 92,359 TOTAL: 82,383 90,791 

 
 
Option 2 

 
1.18 Option 2 has an unequal number of Councillors per area which could impact on the way 

that the committees are constituted. Elector numbers based on 2020 figures are 
balanced, but an imbalance is projected by 2025. This option is the closest comparison 
to the existing Barnet parliamentary constituency boundaries for Chipping Barnet, 
Hendon and Finchley & Golders Green. Map for option 2: 

 

                                            
1 Note: Options presented are based on electorate rather than population figures.  Population figures currently use 

2011 census data and so are out of date.  If population data were to be used, it would ideally use the 2021 census 

data which will not be available until later in 2022.   

140



 
 
1.19 The number of Councillors per Area and per Ward for option 2: 
 

East Area West Area South Area 

High Barnet 2 Edgwarebury 2 Cricklewood 2 

Barnet Vale 3 Edgware 3 Childs Hill 3 

Underhill 2 Burnt Oak 3 East Finchley 3 

East Barnet 3 West Hendon 3 West Finchley 3 

Brunswick Park 3 Hendon 3 Golders Green 2 

Whetstone 2 Mill Hill  3 Woodhouse 2 

Friern Barnet 3 Colindale North 2 Finchley Church End 3 

Totteridge & 
Woodside 

3 Colindale South 3 Garden Suburb 2 

TOTAL: 21 TOTAL: 22 TOTAL: 20 

 

141



1.20 The number of electors2 per Area and per Ward for option 2*: 
 

East Area West Area South Area 

Ward 2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 

High Barnet 8,493 9,233  Edgwarebury 7,927 8,769  Cricklewood 5,177 7,903 

Barnet Vale 11,578 12,284  Edgware 12,391 13,743  Childs Hill 11,014 12,581 

Underhill 8,491 9,156  Burnt Oak 11,424 13,447  East Finchley 10,487 11,545  

East Barnet 11,818 13,007  West Hendon 9,028 12,506 West Finchley 11,650 13,004 

Brunswick 
Park 

11,029 13,096 Hendon 11,786 13,576  Golders 
Green 

7,818 8,396  

Whetstone 7,370 8,543 Mill Hill 11,799 13,018  Woodhouse 8,716 9,493 

Friern Barnet 11,564 12,795 Colindale 
North 

6,254 9,055  Finchley 
Church End 

12,036 13,523 

Totteridge & 
Woodside 

9,481 11,910  Colindale 
South 

8,814 13,360  Garden 
Suburb 

8,863 9,231  

TOTAL: 79,824 90,024 TOTAL: 79,423 97,474 TOTAL: 75,761 85,676 

 
 Option 3 
 
1.21 Option 3 retains an equal number of councillors per area.  Elector numbers based on 2020 

figures are slightly unbalanced, but are broadly balanced by 2025. This option is 
inconsistent with our existing area based governance boundary arrangements.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                            
2 Note: Options presented are based on electorate rather than population figures.  Population figures currently use 

2011 census data and so are out of date.  If population data were to be used, it would ideally use the 2021 census 

data which will not be available until later in 2022.   

142



1.22 Map for option 3: 

 
 
1.23  The number of Councillors per Area and per Ward for option 3: 
  

North Area West Area East Area 

East Barnet 3 Burnt Oak 3 Brunswick Park 3 

Barnet Vale 3 Colindale North 2 Friern Barnet 3 

High Barnet 2 Colindale South 3 Whetstone 2 

Underhill 2 West Hendon 3 Woodhouse 2 

Totteridge and 
Woodside 

3 Hendon 3 West Finchley 3 

Mill Hill 3 Golders Green 2 Finchley Church 
End 

3 

Edgwarebury 2 Cricklewood 2 East Finchley 3 

Edgware 3 Childs Hill 3 Garden  
Suburb 

2 

TOTAL: 21 TOTAL: 21 TOTAL: 21 

143



 
1.24 The number of electors3 per Area and per Ward for option 3: 
 

   

Ward 2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 Ward 2020 2025 

East Barnet 11,818 13,007 Burnt Oak 11,424 13,447  Brunswick 
Park 11,029 13,096 

Barnet Vale 11,578 12,284  Colindale 
North 6,254 9,055  Friern Barnet 11,564 12,795 

High Barnet 8,493 9,233 Colindale 
South 8,814 13,360  Whetstone 7,370 8,543 

Underhill 8,491 9,156  West Hendon 9,028 12,506 Woodhouse 8,716 9,493 

Totteridge 
and 
Woodside 

9,481 11,910  Hendon 11,786 13,576 West Finchley 11,650 13,004 

Mill Hill 11,799 13,018 Golders 
Green 7,818 8,396  Finchley 

Church End 12,036 13,523 

Edgwarebury 7,927 8,769 Cricklewood 5,177 7,903 East Finchley 10,487 11,545  

Edgware 12,391 13,743 Childs Hill 11,014 12,581 Garden  
Suburb 8,863 9,231 

Total: 81,978 91,120 Total: 71,315 90,824 Total: 81,715 91,230 

 
1.25 Under the options presented, Area Committees could be appointed to on a politically 

proportionate basis, or on an area basis.  Legal provisions are set out in the table below: 
 
Area Based Proportionately 

Area Committees Regulation 16A Local 
Government (Committees and Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 SI 1553/1990 provides an 
exception from the political balance requirements 
where a committee is established to discharge 
functions of the authority or to advise the authority 
or another committee of the authority in respect of 
any part of the area of the authority, and –  
(i) the authority is a county, district or London 

borough council; and  
(ii) the voting members of the committee consist 

solely of persons who are elected for 
electoral divisions or wards which are 
wholly or partly within that part; and 

The Council must allocate seats on Committees 
and other prescribed bodies to give effect to the 
political balance rules. The rules for the allocation 
of seats are set out in Sections 15 and 16 of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and 
Local Government (Committees and Political 
Groups) Regulations 1990. Section 15(5) of the 
Local Government and Housing Act 1989 sets 
out the principles as follows:  
a) that not all the seats on the body are allocated 

to the same political group;  
b) that the majority of the seats on the body is 

allocated to a particular political group if the 

                                            
3 Note: Options presented are based on electorate rather than population figures.  Population figures currently use 

2011 census data and so are out of date.  If population data were to be used, it would ideally use the 2021 census 

data which will not be available until later in 2022.   

144



(iii) the area of that part does not exceed two-
fifths of the total area of the authority; or  

(iv) the population of that part, as estimated by 
the authority, does not exceed two-fifths of 
the total population of the area of the 
authority as so estimated.  

 

number of persons belonging to that group is a 
majority of the authority’s membership;  

c) subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, that 
the number of seats on the ordinary 
committees of a relevant authority which are 
allocated to each political group bears the 
same proportion to the total of all the seats on 
the ordinary committees of that authority as is 
borne by the number of members of that group 
to the membership of the authority; and  

d) subject to paragraphs (a) to (c) above, that the 
number of the seats on the body which are 
allocated to each political group bears the 
same proportion to the number of all the seats 
on that body as is borne by the number of 
members of that group to the membership of 
the authority. 

 

 
 Composition Considerations  
 
1.26 Retaining three areas meets the requirements to enable Area Committees to be 

constituted on an area basis (i.e. less than 2/5 of the area; and less than 2/5 of the 
estimated population) 

 
1.27 The current composition of Area Committees = 7 (comprising one Member and one 

substitute Member for each Ward).  Each new area will have 8 wards.  If constituting on 
an area basis continues, the number of Members appointed could increase to 8. 

 
1.28 An alternative to area composition is to appoint based on political proportionality.  Each 

committee would have representation proportionate to their strength on the Council.   
Based on an 8 Member committee and using the current political balance figures the seat 
allocations would be 5 Conservative and 3 Labour for each committee. 
 

1.29 To retain an area link, Article 7 of the Constitution could be amended to have in the 
‘Membership’ column that: the primary Member is a Ward Member; and the Substitute 
Member is recommended to be the Ward Member, but could be any Member from the 
area covered by the Area Committee. 
 

1.30 Ward Members could still make applications to the Area Committee CIL Budgets without 
being appointed to the Committee (as is the case currently).   

 
2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 The above recommendations are put forward to the Committee in order to enable the 

Council to effective plan towards future business of the Area based arrangements for 
Area Committees and Residents Forums. 
 

3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 As set out under section 1.9 of the report, using the proposed BCE parliamentary 
constituency proposals would require a comprehensive revision to the existing three 

145



areas as there is no congruence between parliamentary constituencies, the borough 
boundaries and the local government wards. If Barnet’s new area committee boundaries 
link to the new parliamentary constituencies, then there will be a gap between the ward 
boundaries coming into effect in May 2022 and the new parliamentary boundaries 
coming into effect (on a date TBC). 
 

3.2 Three alternative options were proposed to Members for consideration as outlined in 
section 1 above.   
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 Following the Committee’s decision, a report will be prepared for Council detailing the 
Constitution amendments required to give effect to the approved option for area based 
arrangements for Area Committees and Residents Forums for implementation in May 
2022 when the new ward boundaries come into effect.  
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 To ensure effective participation and efficient procedures are in place are key aims which 
align with the Council’s Corporate Plan, Barnet 2024.  
 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 There are no direct resource implications arising from the proposals set out in this report.  
The options presented have no current implications for the Neighbourhood CIL budgets 
delegated to Area Committees (£0.4m per committee per year).  The options have no 
impact on the current officer support arrangements either.   
 

5.3 Legal and Constitutional References 
 

5.3.1 Under Article 7 (Committees Forums Working Groups and Partnerships) of the Council’s 
Constitution, the terms of reference of the Constitution and General Purposes Committee 
includes the following responsibilities: 
 
To have responsibility for overseeing the Council’s governance arrangements including:  

 Electoral Services including: elections and electoral registration performance; and 
polling places and polling district boundaries  

 Determine Members requests for non-committee information as specified in the 
Members Information Management Policy  

 Endorsing the calendar of meetings prior to Council approval  

 Health and Safety Strategy and Performance  

 Member Development 
 

5.3.2 Under Article 4 (Full Council) of the Council’s Constitution Council has responsibility for 
“Adopting and changing the Constitution (unless delegated).” 

 
5.3.3 Legal considerations for the composition of the Residents Forums and Area Committees 
 are set out in sections 1.25 to 1.29 of the report.  

146



 
 

       
5.4 Insight 
 
5.4.1 Insight information has been used to inform the recommendations and content of the report 

from: 

 Boundary Commission for England review 
https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/2023-review/  

 Mapping data: https://mapit.mysociety.org/area/2489.html   

 Recommendations from the Local Government Boundary Commission for England review 
for Barnet: https://consultation.lgbce.org.uk/node/15057  

 Electoral data: https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2021/06/2021-06-08-Initial-Proposals-London-Region.pdf 

 Population data: https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/Greater 
London/Barnet/Final Recs/Barnet Final Recs Report web.pdf  

 
5.5 Social Value 
 
5.5.1 Not applicable in the context of this report.  

 
5.6 Risk Management 

 
5.6.1 There is a risk of imbalance and disproportionate representation of areas on the Area 

Committees and Residents Forums if the new ward boundaries are not coterminous with 
the area based arrangements coming into effect on 5 May 2022.  
 
 

5.7 Equalities and Diversity  
 
5.7.1 Decision makers should have due regard to the public sector equality duty in making their 

decisions. The equalities duties are continuing duties they are not duties to secure a 
particular outcome. The equalities impact will be revisited on each of the proposals as they 
are developed. Consideration of the duties should precede the decision. It is important that 
committees have regard to the statutory grounds in the light of all available material such 
as consultation responses. The statutory grounds of the public sector equality duty are 
found at section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 and are as follows: 
 
A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to: 
a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is 

prohibited by or under this Act; 
b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 

characteristic and persons who do not share it; 
c) Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 

and persons who do not share it. 
 
Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who 
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having 
due regard, in particular, to the need to: 
a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant 

protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

147

https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/2023-review/
https://mapit.mysociety.org/area/2489.html
https://consultation.lgbce.org.uk/node/15057
https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/2021-06-08-Initial-Proposals-London-Region.pdf
https://boundarycommissionforengland.independent.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/2021-06-08-Initial-Proposals-London-Region.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/Greater%20London/Barnet/Final%20Recs/Barnet%20Final%20Recs%20Report%20web.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/lgbce/Reviews/Greater%20London/Barnet/Final%20Recs/Barnet%20Final%20Recs%20Report%20web.pdf


b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionately low. 

 
The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from the 
needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account of 
disabled persons’ disabilities. 
 
Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it involves having due 
regard, in particular, to the need to: 
a) Tackle prejudice, and 
b) Promote understanding. 
 
Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more 
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that would 
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. The relevant protected characteristics are: 
a) Age 
b) Disability 
c) Gender reassignment 
d) Pregnancy and maternity 
e) Race 
f) Religion or belief 
g) Sex 
h) Sexual orientation 
i) Marriage and civil partnership      

 
5.7.2 Officers do not consider that the proposals will have any detrimental equality 
 implications.  Having area committees means that decisions can be made that are more 
 bespoke to a particular area. 

   
5.8 Corporate Parenting 
 
5.7.1  None in the context of this report.  
 
5.9 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.9.1 The cross-party Members Reference Group for the implementation of the new ward 

boundaries arrangements were consulted on the proposals and engaged through their 
feedback which has informed the content of this report. In addition, service areas such as 
the Organisational Insight & Intelligence and Electoral Services were consulted on data 
and information sources set out in the report. 
 

6. Environmental Impact  
 
6.1 There are no direct environmental implications from noting the recommendations. 

Implementing the recommendations in the report will lead to a positive impact on the 
Council’s carbon and ecology impact, or at least it is neutral. 
 

148



7. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
7.1 Constitution and General Purposes Committee 4 October 2021 – Implementing the New 

Warding Arrangements for the London Borough of Barnet – Project Update (June – 
September 2021): 
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10960&Ver=4  
 

7.2 Constitution and General Purposes Committee 22 June 2021 – Implementing the New 
Warding Arrangements for the London Borough of Barnet – Project Update: 
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10959&Ver=4  
 

7.3 Constitution and General Purposes Committee 12 October 2020 – Implementing the 
Final Recommendations from the Local Government Boundary Commission for England 
(LGBCE): 
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10215&Ver=4  
 

7.4 Council 20 October 2020 – Report of the Constitution and General Purposes Committee, 
Area Planning Committees and the Boundary Review: 
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=10235&Ver=4   

149

https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10960&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10959&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=174&MId=10215&Ver=4
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=162&MId=10235&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Constitution & General Purposes 
Committee 

 
6 January 2022 

Title  Member Safety Review 

Report of Head of Governance 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          None  

Officer Contact Details  
Andrew Charlwood, Head of Governance, 
andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk, 020 8359 2014  

 

Summary 
 
The Chairman of the Constitution & General Purposes Committee has requested that officers 
undertake a review of safety following the killing of Sir David Amess in October 2021 which 
considers the safety of councillors and the public in council owned premises (Hendon Town 
Hall, libraries, etc.) and the safety of councillors in pursuit of their public duties in particular 
Members’ surgeries.   
 

 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Committee note the actions taken in relation to Member Safety to date. 

2. That the Committee review the action areas set out in the report and confirm any 
additional areas for investigation by officers. 

1. Why this report is needed 

 The Chairman has requested that officers undertake a review of safety following the 
killing of Sir David Ames in October 2021 which considers the safety of councillors and 
the public in council owned premises (Hendon Town Hall, libraries, etc.) and the safety 

151

AGENDA ITEM 10

mailto:andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk


 

Page 2 of 9 

of councillors in pursuit of their public duties in particular Members’ surgeries.  This 
report sets out actions that the Council has taken to date and areas for improvement. 

Safety of Public and Councillors in Council Owned Premises 

 At most council owned premises there will be security arrangements in place or there 
may be council staff present.  However, where this is not the case or if the member will 
be Lone Working; members are advised to consider either changing the venue, time or 
ensuring that Lone Working risk is mitigated with the presence of another person, or 
other suitable measures for the duration of the meeting/surgery. Members are also 
advised to seek and discuss information from the Governance and the MASH team on 
localised risk, especially where elected members are meeting members of public or 
holding surgeries without security. 

 Risk Assessments and safety guidance are in place and have been shared with all 
councillors and members. It is the individual’s responsibility to ensure that they have 
read and understood the risk assessment and that they follow any control measure 
identified, as these will be specific for the building being used. Any other unknown or 
insight into risk or safety concern should be raised with the Governance and Health and 
Safety service.  Risk assessments should be reviewed at least annually or sooner if 
there have been any significant changes, or any incidents have taken place where the 
control measures were not suitable and sufficient.  All incidents must be recorded and 
reported to the council and where applicable to the police. 

 Emergency evacuation plans are in place in all council owned properties and councillors 
and members must familiarise themselves with these plans especially when using an 
unfamiliar venue. 

Safety of Councillors in Pursuit of Public Duties   

 Elected Members (or councillors) undertake several roles including:  

 representing a ward;  

 acting as decision-maker (in Council and committees);  

 involved policy and strategy review and development;  

 acting as a community leader and networker;  

 representing the Council on outside bodies and partnerships; and  

 acting as the interface between the Council and residents.   

 There are many ways in which Members may interface with the community on various 
issues including (but not limited to): 

 Liaison with residents associations and other local groups; 

 Attending ward surgeries;  

 Dealing with casework (including raising Members Enquiries); 

 Attending mayoral or civic events; 

 Serving on or attending committee meetings, partnerships and/or forums where 
residents may make representations, present petitions, or attend to hear the debate 
and the outcome of a decision; 

152



 

Page 3 of 9 

 Attending planning site visits; 

 Representing local views at planning and licensing meetings; 

 Dealing with locally contentious issues;  

 In several of these contexts Members may be in lone working situations which place 
them at risk. 

 Following the murder of MP Jo Cox in June 2016, who had been assassinated by a 
right-wing extremist on the way to meet her constituents at a routine surgery, the 
Council identified a requirement to provide advice, guidance, and support to Members 
on reducing risks associated with attending Members’ Surgeries.  The importance of 
work in this area has recently been highlighted by the murder of Sir David Amess in 
October 2021 whilst attending his constituency surgery in Leigh-on-Sea.    

Members’ Surgeries Health & Safety Risk Assessments 

 During 2016/17, the Governance Service and Health & Safety worked with the political 
groups to develop and undertake a health and safety risk assessment for Members’ 
surgery venues.  The generic risk assessment request Members to consider the 
following:  

Surgery Venues 

 familiarisation with the venues’ emergency evacuation procedures;  

 providing personal alarms on request;  

 advising Members to have a charged mobile phone accessible to call the police if 
required;  

 reviewing the venue for safe access/egress, including full access for wheelchair 
use/people with mobility issues 

 recommending the use of an appointment system of booking, so that no unknown visitors 
will be left alone with the Member 

 not displaying valuables;  

 recommending that all incidents of physical and non-physical assault be reported;  

 recommending that venues with staff present should be used;  

 reviewing the venue for potential weapons and removing;  

 recommending that rooms with vision panels are used;  

 ensuring that visitors are not able to lock doors from the inside, that Members are 
seated closer to the door than the visitor, and that they are visible to staff outside the 
room at all times 

 recommending that surgery venues have wi-fi and use of a landline telephone/and or 
reliable mobile phone signal; 

 agreeing a ‘body code’ with a buddy to indicate that the buddy should come and 
assist by politely asking a person to leave; 

 establishing a procedure for reporting suspicious behaviour; and  

153



 

Page 4 of 9 

 reviewing lighting in car parks and paths 
 

Travelling to and From Venues 

 not walking through areas where you feel uncomfortable or suspect are unsafe 

 sticking to well-lit paths and not taking short cuts 

 walking with other people 

 inform someone when leaving and/or expected time of arrival  

 carry charged mobile phone 

 carry personal alarm if preferred 

 avoiding entering people’s homes and try to meet in a public place until the person is 
well known to the Member.  

 

Health & Safety  

 plan your journey – know where you are going, how you are going to get there, not 
working out of hours, considering using a buddy,  

 first aid contacts 

 familiarisation with fire arrangements 

 having numbers for security staff available  

 Discussions on the risk assessments took place at Party Group meetings in early 2018 
and following this Ward Members worked with the Political Assistants to complete a risk 
assessment checklist to identify risks and action areas.  The risk assessments also had 
a personal safety guide for councillors covering:  

 running a safe surgery;  

 dealing with emotional constituents;  

 safety out and about;  

 home visits;  

 malicious and nuisance telephone calls;  

 mail and packages;  

 car safety and parking;  

 reporting incidents; and  

 training.    

 Where the risk assessment identified issues, advice was given to Members to put in 
place mitigations to reduce risk.  In addition, Members were provided with copies of the 
following:  

 Staff Lone Working Policy 2015;  

 information from Adult Social Care on reporting abuse; and  

154



 

Page 5 of 9 

 information from the Barnet Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) on keeping 
children and young people in Barnet safe and supported. All Members were offered 
personal safety alarms at this time.   

 details of how to report an incident.   

 The risk assessments which were completed identified some issues with specific 
venues.  In these cases, mitigations were put in place, or Members stopping using 
venues completely and found better alternatives. 

 In October 2019 officers reissued the risk assessments and circulated updated advice to 
Members including: 

 Barnet Corporate Health, Welfare and Safety Policy for Lone Working 2017; 

 Guidance on lone working form the Health & Safety Executive and the Suzy 
Lamplugh Trust; 

 Guidance on reporting incidents; 

 Guidance on raising adult or child safeguarding concerns 

Training and Development 

 In addition to the advice and support offered to Members relating to surgeries, officers 
have also organised training sessions covering the following: 

 In November 2018 and February 2020, the Community Safety Team delivered 
sessions on Prevent covering: Prevent Duty; vulnerabilities; behaviours; Channel 
Panel; the role of Members; online resources; and guidance; and In November 2021 
Personal Safety for Members covering: surgery safety; reading body language; 
scenarios where councillors may face challenging behaviour and risk; canvassing; 
risk management; tips for online safety; relevant legislation; technology to support 
personal safety; general advice and guidance. 

 Officers are liaising with the police colleagues in the Barnet, Brent and Harrow 
Borough Command Unit to schedule Member training on ‘Action Counters Terrorism 
(ACT)’ in January 2022 to cover the following topics: 

 Introduction to Terrorism 
 Identifying Security Vulnerabilities 
 How to Identify and Respond to Suspicious Behavior 
 How to Identify and Deal with a Suspicious Item 
 What to do in the Event of a Bomb Threat 
 How to Respond to a Firearms or Weapons attack 

Guidance 

 In addition to the guidance referred to above, officers will proactively identify advice and 
guidance and share with Members.  For example, in November 2021 officers circulated 
personal safety guidance from the Local Government Association1 for Members 
covering: 

 Ward surgeries; 

                                            
1 Personal safety | Local Government Association 

155

https://local.gov.uk/personal-safety


 

Page 6 of 9 

 Dealing with a variety of behaviours; 

 Home visits;  

 Potentially violent persons register; 

 Lone working; 

 Personal callers to councillor’s private homes; 

 Home security;  

 Attendance at meetings; 

 Demonstrations;  

 Travelling safely; 

 Reporting incidents; 

 Training; and 

 Terrorist-level threats. 

 The site provided links to other content on: 

 Handling intimidation; 

 Councillors and social media; 

 Handling abuse on social media; and 

 What does the law say? 

 

Action Areas 

 Explore ways to improve liaison with the police on existing and emerging threats to 
personal safety. 

 Considering other lone working contexts for councillors and develop a range of advice, 
guidance and support to minimise risks including: attending public meetings regarding 
controversial topics; surveys, petitions or canvassing in public areas; online (emails and 
social media); home visits; site visits; mayoral or civic events; site visits; and other 
contexts where Members may be recognised within the community.  

 Creating a single point of contact in the Council to liaise with if Members are being 
harassed by a member of the public (to assist with police liaison). 

 Considering whether security is required at Members Surgeries.   

 Reviewing arrangements at other local authorities relating to Member Safety and 
applying best practice in Barnet. 

 Adding information relating to Member Safety the Members Intranet page being 
launched in the new year. 

 Highlighting to members that under the Localism Act sensitive interests may be 
exempted from publication in certain circumstances. 

156



 

Page 7 of 9 

 Review safety arrangements at Full Council, committee meetings, partnership boards, 
etc.   

 Explore with Political Groups how they support the personal safety of elected Members 
when they are acting as a Member of a Political Group and identify improvement areas 
such as: 

 Consideration of political parties to fund location technology such as Solo Protect 

 Consider the use of location Apps such as Life 360 to identify location whilst 
travelling to and from venues. 

2. Reasons for recommendations 

 The Chairman of the Constitution & General Purposes Committee has requested that 
officers undertake a review of Member safety following the murder of Sir David Amess. 

3. Alternative options considered and not recommended 

 The Council could decide not to review arrangements for Member safety.  This is not 
recommended as the Council has a duty of care to elected Members when acting in 
their roles as a Member of the Council and as a Ward Councillor.    

4. Post decision implementation 

 Subject to any additional areas identified by the Committee, officers will review the 
action areas identified and take additional steps to improve Member safety 
arrangements where possible.   

5. Implications of decision  

 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

5.1.1 Improving arrangements in relation to Member safety helps support delivery of the 
Barnet Plan 2021 – 2025 priority of Clean, Safe and Well-Run 

 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 

5.2.1 Any Member training needs can be supported from the Member Development Budget.  

5.2.2 Any additional resource implications identified following a review of the action areas 
will be reported to a future meeting of the committee.   

 Legal and Constitutional References 

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Article 7, Committees, Forums and Working Groups – the terms 
of reference of the Constitution & General Purposes Committee includes: Member 
Development; and Health and Safety Strategy and Performance. 

157



 

Page 8 of 9 

5.3.2 Under the Localism Act there is an obligation for members to publicly declare  
Interests for reasons of transparency in decision making. Section 32 of the Act deals 
with sensitive interests where the disclosure of such an interest on the register or at a 
meeting may lead to violence or intimidation.  Councillors should contact the 
Monitoring Officer if they consider that this section applies to them. There may be 
circumstances where if it is an address the whole or part of the address does not 
appear on the public register 

32 Sensitive interests 
 

(1)  Subsections (2) and (3) apply where— 
(a)  a member or co-opted member of a relevant authority has an interest (whether or 
not a disclosable pecuniary interest), and 

 
(b)  the nature of the interest is such that the member or co-opted member, and the 
authority's monitoring officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest 
could lead to the member or co-opted member, or a person connected with the 
member or co-opted member, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
(2)  If the interest is entered in the authority's register, copies of the register that are 
made available for inspection, and any published version of the register, must not 
include details of the interest (but may state that the member or co-opted member has 
an interest the details of which are withheld under this subsection). 

 
(3)  If section 31(2) applies in relation to the interest, that provision is to be read as 
requiring the member or co-opted member to disclose not the interest but merely the 
fact that the member or co-opted member has a disclosable pecuniary interest in the 
matter concerned. 

 
     Section 31(2) deals with interests declared at meetings.  

 Insight 

5.4.1 N/A 

 Social Value 

5.5.1 N/A 

 Risk Management 

5.6.1 Via the actions completed to date and identified action areas, the Council are seeking 
to reduce risks to Members in a variety of contexts where risks to their personal safety 
may exist. 

 Equalities and Diversity  

5.7.1 N/A 

 Corporate Parenting 

5.8.1 N/A 

158



 

Page 9 of 9 

 Consultation and Engagement 

5.9.1 N/A 

 Environmental Impact 

5.10.1 N/A 

 

6. Background papers 

 None 

 

159



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

London Borough of Barnet 
 

Constitution and General 
Purposes Committee Work 

Programme 
 

January 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

161

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 13



 
Subject  

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report of Chief/Lead officer 

 
Update 

  

7 February 2022  

Constitution Review 
Standing Item 
 

To review and approve revisions 
to the Constitution following the 
review of elements which require 
updating and review 
 

Monitoring Officer 
 
Head of Governance 

N/A 
 

Annual Pay Policy 
Statement  
 

To receive the annual review of 
the Council’s pay policy 
statement together with any 
amendments.   
 

Assistant Director – Human 
Resources and Organisational 
Development  

N/A 

Local Government & 
Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
and Housing 
Ombudsman Summary 
of Upheld Complaints 
report 2020/21  
 

Summary of the upheld 
complaints determined by the 
LGSCO and Housing 
Ombudsman during 2020/21 

Head of Assurance and Business 
Development 

Not reported to date due to Covid impact 
on committees 

 
 

Items to be allocated 

Information 
Management 
As and when required 
 
 

To determine Member requests 
for non-committee information as 
specified in the Members’ 
Information Management Policy 
 
 

Director of Assurance 
 
Head of Assurance and Business 
Development 
 

N/A 
 

162



 
Subject  

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report of Chief/Lead officer 

 
Update 

  

Health & Safety Annual 
Report 
 

Review of health and safety 
performance during 2021/22 and 
priorities for 2022/23 
 

Head of Safety, Health and 
Wellbeing 

N/A 

Review of Policy for 
Payments for Additional 
Responsibilities and 
Outstanding 
Contributions  
 

To review implementation of the 
Policy  

Assistant Director Human 
Resources and Organisational 
Development 

N/A 

Code of Conduct 
Allegations 2020/21 and 
2021/22 
 

Report on complaints regarding 
Members that the Monitoring 
Officer has received about 
Member conduct during 2020/21 
and 2021/22. 
 

Monitoring Officer Report after 1st April 2022 

Local Government & 
Social Care 
Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
and Housing 
Ombudsman Summary 
of Upheld Complaints 
Report 2021/22 
 

Summary of the upheld 
complaints determined by the 
LGSCO and Housing 
Ombudsman during 2021/22. 

Head of Assurance and Business 
Development 

Report after 1st April 2022 

163



 
Subject  

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report of Chief/Lead officer 

 
Update 

  

Annual Review of the 
Members Code of 
Conduct 

Complete an annual review of the 
Members Code of Conduct to 
comply with the 
recommendations of the 
Committee on Standards in 
Public Life 

 

Monitoring Officer 
 
Head of Governance 

Last updated October 2020 

164


	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	7 Proposals for the restructure of the Community Safety Team within the Assurance Group
	Appendix A - New Structure Chart
	Appendix x - New Structure Chart.vsdx
	Page-1


	Appendix B - Close of Consultation Document - Community Safety - FINAL 091221
	Appendix C - Equalities Impact Assessment for Community Safety Team restructure

	8 Final Proposals for new Polling Districts and Polling
	App1_FullLBB_PDPPprop_Jan2022
	Appendix2_ListProposedPollingPlaces
	BarnetVale_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	BrunswickPark_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	BurntOak_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	ChildsHill_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	ColindaleNorth_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	ColindaleSouth_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Cricklewood_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	EastBarnet_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	EastFinchley_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Edgware_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Edgwarebury_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	FinchleyChurchEnd_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	FriernBarnet_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	GardenSuburb_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	GoldersGreen_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Hendon_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	HighBarnet_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	MillHill_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	TotteridgeWoodside_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Underhill_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	WestFinchley_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	WestHendon_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Whetstone_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Woodhouse_PDPPprop_CGPJan2022
	Appendix27_FINALPubConRepresentationsReceived
	Appendix28_PDPP2021_EQIA

	9 Revised Boundaries and Arrangements - Residents Forums and Area Committees
	10 Member Safety Review
	13 Committee Forward Work Programme



